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NOTICE

l{O'llcE is hereby given thatthe 3l'tAnnual General Meeting of the Members of the Company
rvill be held on Wednesday, the 1ltr August, 2021 at l0:30 a.m. IST through Video Conferencing
("VC") / Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") to transact the following business:
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OITDINARY BUSINESS
l. 'fo receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the

year ended on 31't March, 2021 together with the Report of the Board of Direitors and
Auditors thereon and in this regard, pass the following resolutions as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31,2021and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon
laid before this meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted."

'fo appoint Mr. BalkrishanAgarwal (DIN:08599472), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as a Director and in this regard, pass the
lbllowing resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act,
ll0l3, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal (DIN:08599472), who retires by rotation at this meeting
rrnd being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as
ru Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation."

['legcl.Office :

l5B, HemantaBasuSarani, 3'd Floor
Kolkata - 700 001.

Date : 26th June, 2021.

By Order of the Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA
(Mg.Director)

DIN:00123386
I{O'TES:

l. In view of the outbreak of the Covid-I9 pandemic and continuing restriction imposed on
lnovement of peoples at several places in the country, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(.'MCA") vide its Circular No.2012020 dated May 5,2020 read with Circular No.l412020
dated April 8,2020 and CircularNo.lT/2020 dated April 13,2020(collectively referred to
us "MCA Circulars") and other applicable circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange
Iloard of India (SEBD have permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting
("AGM") through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a
common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"),
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI
Listing Regulations") and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through
VC / OAVM.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Register of
Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday,
5th August, 2021to Wednesday, l lthAugust,202l (Uot-t auys inclusive) for annual closing.
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3. Since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, the facility for
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for this AGM and henCe the
Attendance Slip, Route Map and Proxy Form are not annexed to this notice.

4. "l'he Company will conduct the AGM through VC/OAVM from its Registered Office i.e.
l58 Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor, Kolkata-700001.Which shall be deemed to be venue
of the meeting.

5. Corporate members intending to authorize their representative(s) to attend the Meeting are
requested to send a scanned copy of the board resolution (pdfljpeg format) authorizing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the tvtieiing. The said Board
llesolution/Authorization shall be sent to the Company by email through its registered
email address to investorcare@norbentea.com.

6. '[he Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means (e-voting) through
ttn electronic voting system which will include remote e-voting as prescribed by the
Companies (Management and Aclministration) Rules, 2014 as presently in force and
the business set out in the Notice will be transacted through such voting. Information
and instructions including details of user id and password relaiing to e-votin! are provided
in the Notice under Note No.l7

7. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to intimate changes in their
address alongwith proof of address/bank mandate to the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents (RTA), MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited. Members holding shares in electronic
mode are requested to send the intimation for change of address / bink mandate to their
lespective Depository Participant.

I Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint
holding in the same order of names are requested to write to the Company,, RTA,
enclosing their share certificates to enable the Company to consolidate their trbtaings into a
single folio.

9. Shareholders are also requested to take immediate action to demat their shares to avail easy
liquidity since trading of shares of the Company are under compulsory demat mode ur pr.
the regulation of SEBI and also to prevent any loss of physical Share Certificate (if already
complied with, please ignore this).

10. fhe Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in Securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their pAN to their
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the R&T Agent or to the
Itegistered Office of the Company.

I l. 'fo prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and
notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as soon as
possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long.
Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Deposito[
Participant and holdings should be verified.
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12. Details under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchange in respect of the Director
seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, form-an integral part of the notice."fhe Director has furnished the requisite declaration foihis/her re-appiintment.

13. Electronic copy of the Notice and Annual Report of the 3l'tAnnual General Meeting of the
Company inter alia indicating the process ard -anner of e-voting is being r"rt to"uli ifr.
members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depo-sitory pa:rticipants(s) for
communication purposes.

In terms of SEBI Circular No.SEBVHo/cFD/cMDUCtNp/202017g dated May 12, 2o2o
and Circular No.SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2ICIWP/2O2LI|| dated January 15, 2o2lowing to
the difficulties involved in despatching of physical/hard copies of nrtt annual ,.poi to
shareholders are being sent in electronic 

-mode 
to members those email address is

registered with the Company or the Depository Participant (s). The members who have not
updated their email address are requested to do so immediately since the requirement of
sending physical copies of annual report are dispensed with.

14' 'Ihe Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding
maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 andthe Register of Contracts
and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section l g9 of the
Act and all other documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in
electronic mode.

15. Members holding shares in physical form can now avail the facility of nomination in
respect of shares held by them pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013. ihe prescribed Form

' (Form SH 13) can be obtained from the Share Dipartment of the Company. Members
desiring to avail this facility may send their Nomination Form (in duplicat"l aufy filled in,
to the Company or its Share Transfer Agents, MCS Share Transfer Agent iin1itla of 3g3,
I-ake Gardens, I't Floor, Kolkata - 7OO045,by quoting their respectiveiolio Numbers.

16. Members may also note that the Notice of the 3l'tAnnual General Meeting, the Annual
Report for 2020-2lwill also be available on the Company's website www.norbentea.com.
Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to receive such
oommunication in physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost.
For any qommunication, the shareholders may aiso send requests to'ttr. Company,s
investor email id: investorcare@norbentea.com.

17. PROCEDURE & INSTRUCTION FOR REMOTE E.VOTING, E-VOTING AND
JOINING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS FOLLOWS

1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-1g global pandemic, the
ggngral meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guilelines issued by the
Minislry_o_f Corpor3tg njfalp Ugnl vide circular No.14t2(i20 datei Apritt a,-zoz0, circutar
No.1712020 dated April 13, 2o2o and Circular No. 2012020 dated ivt"yt'ol, 2020. The
forthcoming Annual General^Meeting will thus be held through video conierencing (VC) orother audio visual means- (OAVM) Hence, Members can attend and participaje in ine
ensuing Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM.

2. P-uryua{tothe provisions of Section 108 of the CompaniesAct,20l3 read with Rule20of the Companie-s_(Management and Adminiskation) Rules, ZOfa i6 ,rended) and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosuie Requirementsinegufations 201S
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(as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 1g,2O2O and May OS, ZO2O
the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the
business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeiing. For this purpose, the Company
has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (rnciiay Limited tcbsr_)for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's ageniy. Th6
facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the-e-voiing system
on the date of the Annual General Meeting will be provided by CDSL.

3. The Members can join the Annual General Meeting in the VC/OAVM mode 1S minutes
before and after the scheduled time of the commencLment of the Meeting by following the
procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at thJAnnual General
Meeting through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come
first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2o/o ot
more shareholding), Promoters, lnstitutional lnvestors, Directors, Key Ma-nagerial
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and ilemuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to
attend the Annual General Meeting without restriction on account of first come first served
basis.

4. The attendance of the Members attending the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM
will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section tOg of the
Companies Act, 2013.

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No.1412020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to
attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this Annual General Meeting.
However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 20L,
representatives of the members such as the President of lndia or the Governor of a State
or body corporate can attend the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM and cast
their votes through e-voting.

ln line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No.17t2O2O dated April 13,
2020, the Notice calling the Annual General Meeting has been uploaded on the website of
the Company at www.norbentea.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites
of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of lndia Limited at
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively. The Annual General Meeting
Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-
Voting facility and e-voting system during the Annual Genera] Meeting i.e.
www.evotinqindia. com.

7. The Annual General Meeting has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No.14t2O2O
dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No.1 712020 dated April 13, 2O2O and MCA Circular
No.2012020 dated May 05, 2020.

8. ln continuation of this Ministry's General Circular No.2Ol202O. dated 05th May, 2O2O and
after due examination, it has been decided to allow companies whose AGMs were due to
be held in the year 2020, or become due in the year 2021, to conduct theirAGMs on or
before 31.12.2021, in accordance with the requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the General Circular No.2012020 as per MCA Circular No.O2t202i dated January 13,
2021.

6
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(iu)

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS
MEETINGSARE AS UNDER:

FOR E.VOTING AND JOININGVIRTUAL

(i) The voting period begins on 8th August, 2o2j (g.oo am) and ends on 1gth August,2021
and (5'00pm). During this period shareholders' of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 4th August, 2021 may
cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting
thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entifled to
vote at the meeting venue.

(iii) Pursuant to sEBl circular No.sEBVHo/cFD/cMD tctR]pt2020?42 datedog.t2.202o,under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote
e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders' resolutions. However, it
has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail
shareholders is at a negligible level.

Curently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to
listed entities in lndia. This necessitates registration on'various ESPs a-nd maintenance of
multiple user lDs and passwords by the shareholders.

ln order to increase.the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation,
it has been decided to enable e-voting to altlhe demat account hotders, by way of a
single login cr.edential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositlries/
Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without
having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting
process.

In terms of SEBI Circular No.SEBl/HO/CFD/GMD/ClR/P/2020/242dated December 9. 2020
V

m

ders
Id in their demat accounts in order to acc@

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings
for lndividual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode bOSi / NSDLis givSn
below:
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Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their
existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting
page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi /
Easiest arehttps://web.cdslindi or visit
vwvrv.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting
option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the

information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user

will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access

the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e.

CDSLATSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers' website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is

availableathttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat

Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on

www.cdslindia.com home page or click on

https://evoting.cdslindia.comlEvoting/EvotingloginThe system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as

recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be

able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able

to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL

l) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once

the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner" icon

under "Login" which is available under 'IDeAS' section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on "Access to

e-Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page.

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-

directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the

meeting.
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2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available
at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online for IDeAS "Portal or
click at https ://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectRe g j sp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https:/lwww.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer
or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on
the icon "Login" which is available under 'shareholder/Member' section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a

Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will
be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode)
login through
their
Depository
Participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site
after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected
to e-voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use
Forset User ID and Forget Password option available at website.

Helndesk for Individual Shareholders holdins securities in demat for any technical
issues related to loein throueh Depositorv i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login
can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
orcontact atO22- 23058738 and22-
230s8542-43.

Ind ividual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login
can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800224430

7



(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings forPhysical shareholders and
shareholders other than individua! holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotinqindia.com.

2) Click on "Shareholders" module.

3) Now enter your User lD

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary lD,
b. For NSDL: I Character DP lD followed by 8 Digits Ctient tD,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number

registered with the Company.

4) Next enter the lmage Verification as displayed and click on Login

5) lf you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotinqindia.com and
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) lf you are a first-time user follow the steps given below
For Physical shareholders and other than individ
shareholders holding shares in Demat.

PAN Enter your 1 0digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by lncome Tax
Department (Applicable for both demat sharehorders as well as
physical shareholders)

Shareholders who have not updated their pAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the
sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact
Company/RTA.

Dividend

Bank

Details

OR Date

of Birth
(DoB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm lyyyy
format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company
records in order to login.

o lf both the details are not recorded with the depository or
company, please enter the member id / folio number in the
Dividend Bank details field.

(vi)

(vii)

After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach
'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through bOSt- platform. lt is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any otheiperson and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential.

8
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(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting
on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(ix) click on the EVSN for the relevant <company Name> on which you choosg to vote.

(x) On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same
the option "YES/NO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES
implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

(xi)

(xii)

Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT'. A
confirmation box will be displayed. lf you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to
change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

Additional Facility for Non - lndividual Shareholders and Gustodians -For Remote
Voting only.
Non-lndividual shareholders (i.e. other than lndividuals, HUF, NR! etc.) and Custodians
are required to log on to www.evotinoindia.com and register themselves in the
"Corporates" module.
A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should
be emailed to helpdesk.evotinq@cdslindia.com.
After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin
login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which
they wish to'vote on.
The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to
cast their vote.
A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have
issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system
for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
Alternatively Non lndividual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory
who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz;
investorcare@norbentea.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the
CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xiii)

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option on the
Voting page.

(xv) lf a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User lD and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by
the system.

(xvi)

o

a

a

a

a

a
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERSATTENDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING THROUCH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

l. The procedure for attending meeting &e-Voting on the day of the Annual General
Meetingis same as the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company
will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-
voting.

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the
meeting, However, they will not be eligible to vote at the Annual General Meeting.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / Ipads for better
cxperience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use lntcrnet with a good speed
to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or
LAN Connection to mitigate any kind ofaforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleastl0 days prior
to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at investorcare@norbentea.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak
during the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 10 days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at investorcare@norbentea.com. Thesc queries will be replied to by the company
suitably by email.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to
express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the Annual General Meeting through
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-
Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-
Voting system available during the Annual Ceneral Meeting.

10. ifany Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the Annual
General Meeting and ifthe same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as
the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending
the meeting.

lo



PROCESS FOR THOSE SHARXHOLDERS WHOSE f,MAILMOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name oF

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested

scanned copy ol PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by

cmail to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update )our email id & mobile no. with your

respective Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders Please update your email id & mobile no. with
your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining
virtual meetings through Depository.

lf you have any queries or issues regarding attending Annual Genera! Meeting& e-Voting from the
CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to !Clpdes!€ygtilg(@!!b!!!iia.q9!0 or contact at
022-230587 38 and 022-230585421 43.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.

Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. lranager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (lndia) Limited, A Wing, 25th

Floor, Marathon Futurex, l afatlal Mill Compounds, N i, Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai

- 400013 or send an email to helodesk.evoti cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542143

Details of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting lPursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure

Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on Ceneral Meetings]

Name oflhe Director Ntr. BalkrishaDAsarusl
Date of Birth 07-09-1985

Nationrlity
Datc ofAppointment on the Bosrd tldNovember.20lg

Qurlifications C,A

Expertise in specilic fuDctionil rrea
Number ofshar6 held in the Company NiI

Lisl ofthe directorshiDs held in olher companies* Nil

Number ofBoard M eeii ngs ,ttetrded during the year2020-21 l
Chrirman/ Member in th€ Committees of the Boards of
comprDi€s in which he is Dircctor* I Sbkeholde6 R.l.tio.shipCommnFe

3 Nomtnaiion & RcmuncEtion Comm'nee
4 Shde Transfer Comm(ee

Relationships belween Directors in(er-se
Remuneration details (Itrcludins Sittins Fees & ConInission) Rs.12.500/-
*Direclorship includes Direclorship ofPublic Companies & Committee membership includes only Audit Committee

and Stakeholden' Relationship Co,nnitlee ofPublic Limited Comprny (whetherListed o. not).

Bv Order ofthe Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

Regd.Office:
l58, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3rd Floor,
Kolkata-700001. MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

(Mg. Director)
DIN:00123386Datc: 26th June, 2021
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NORBEN Tf,A & EXPORTS LIT{ITED
CIN: L01r32wBl99oPLC04899l

REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRXCTORS

TO THE MEMBERS
Your Directors arc pleased 1() present the Thirty First Annual Report together with the Company's Audited
Accounts for the Financial Year ended 3l"rMarch. 2021.

I. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS
The finrncial performance of the Company lor the year ended on 3l'rMarch, 2021 is summadzed
below:-

2. STATtr OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
liinrncial Year 2020-21 witnessed altogether new high price levels lor tea which helped tea companies
recover the value oicrcp loss as bushes had to be pruned^kifl'ed on resuming operatknts ailer lock'down
period lbr Covid-19 Guidelines.

lncrcased revenue liom operalions and cosl conlrol measures have yiclded prcfits. Duringlhe year lhe lrade
unions and employcrs Associalions agreed to l5oZ enhanccment of tvagcs of$orkmcn and all catcgorics
ot sub-Stati and StalT, the full e1l'ect of $hich $ill impacl the next I'inanciel \'ear. The growing season for
tca has starlcd with a prolongcd dly period.

], CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS. IF ANY
There has been no change in the nature ofBusiness ofthe Company durinS thc reported financ;al year

I,'INANCIAL SUMMARY
Ycar Ended

March 31.2021
(Rs. in thousand)

Year Ended March
31,2020

(Rs. in thousand)
'l'otal Revenue 75213 49395

Profit bcfore Finance Cost, Depreciation and Taxalion 21728 (3272)
Lcss : Finance Cost 6845 7t75
Profi1/ (Loss) before Deprcciation and Tax r 7883 (t0447)
Less : Depreciation 4959 4686
Profi, (Loss) before Exceptional ltems and Tax 12924 (r5r33)
Prior Period Expenditure
Profi t/ (l,oss) before Tax 12924 ( | 5133)
l,ess/(Add) : CunentTax
Less(Add) : Mat Credit
Income Tax for earlier year
Provision ol Defened Tax (Crcd;t)

1375
(861)
(r33) 262

673
Profir(Loss) after Tax 11774 (16068)

Other Comprehensi ve Income
Itcm that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (28) (226)
lncome lax .elating to these items 7 58
Tolal Comprehensive Income for the period 11753 (16236)
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4. DIVIDENI)
The B-oard has not recommended any dividend for the financial y€ar 2020-2r in view ofretaining cash for
your Company's growth prospects.

5. TR,{NSFER TO GENERAL RESf,RVE
Appropriation amomts proposed to be ransferred to General Reserve

I2.AUDTTORS REPORT
l'hc.report by the Auditors is serf explanatory and has no quarification, reservation, adveme remark or
disclaimer; hence no explanation or comments by the Board wire required.

I3.SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuxnt to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2011, and lhe Companies (Apointment and
Remuneralion of Managerial personnel) Rules. 2014 the BoarJ has appointed CS ejay Kumar egarwal,
Proprietor of Agarwal A & Associates, Company Secrelaries, fract;cing Compiny Secretary as its
secrclarial auditor ro undertake secretariai Audil for rhe Fy 2020-2r. The s;crerariar ,iudit Repo; in the
specified form MR-3 is annexed herewith as Annexure A in the Atrlexur€ forming part of this Report
.,,!:,1:.T",rlirl.Orqi,Repon has a quatificarion. re\er\arion. ad!erse,".urt r"tr-r;'n! ro suspension in
rm0r.ng ot eqully shares ol- lhe Compan) due to non complidnce of rhe eligibilirj requiiemenr for
conlrnuous li5tint and rhe Compan) has made an applicdtion on 2g,h Ma), 20lg; BSF for revocalion of
suspension ofCompany with Bombay Stock E\change and a*aiting for iheir appro\al. The Equity SharesoIthe Company are traded at the National Stock Exchange of Indiaiimited. The Bombay Stoct Exchange
via email dated 24tr March,2020 has alrowed rhe comiany to do aI ir.,e niing.- in- ."J,npr iun"" *i*, te
lisring regularions and the Company is complying with ali thi fiiing requlrementJon reluia. bas;s.

NIL.

6. MATERIAL CHANGES COMMITTMENTS
There are no material changes or commitments affecting lhe financial position ofthe company which has
occufted between the end ofthe financiar year ofthe company to which the financial statements relate and
lhe date ofthe report.

7.SHARf, CAPITAL
Duringtheyear under review the Company has not ahered its share capital.

8. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTIIM

I:ui C:rnlani 
,has 

in place.^an adequare sysrem of internal controls commensurate with its size,
reqxrlemenls and lhe nature of operalions. These s)srem\ are designed teeping in rieu lhe nature of
dcrirjries localion and various bu\iness operdtion

?.?E]4ILS IN RXSPECT OF ADEQUACY Or INTERNAL FTNANCTAL CONTROLS WrTH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Being a Iisted entily, the financial statements are passing through the Audit committee and the processes of
lnternal and Extemal (Tax, Cost and Slatutory) Audits, beforeleing approved at the meeting ;ffte Board
of Directors ofthe Company. The financial statements are regulady;p;;ted on the Company,s website and
available to all stakeholdcrs.

1O.NAMf,S OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOMf, OR CEASED T'O BE ITS
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATf, COMPANIES DURING T}II] YEAR

As on 3l"tMarch, 2021, your company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate Companles.

11. PUBLIC DEPOSITS
Your Company has not accepted/renewed any deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act,
2013.
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I4.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, ABSORPTTON OF TECHNOLOGY, FORETGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO
l'he information pursuant to Section 13a(3)(m) of the Companies Ac/t, 2Al3 and Rule 8 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,is given as Annexure Bin the Annexure forming part of this Report.

Is.EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN
In terms of provisions of Section 92, 134(3), read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Retum in Form MGT t has been uploaded on the
Company's website at www.norbentea.com/pdf/extractoftheannualreturn_March]lZl.pdf

I6.POLICY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
'l'he level of operations of the Company does not conform to the minimum threshold of Corporate Social
Responsibility reporting.

17. DIRECTORS
At present your Board is duly constituted comprising of 6 (Six) Directors, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga (DIN:
00123386), Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria (DIN: 05353976), Mrs. Swati Agarwal (DIN: 06804522), Mr.
Balkrishan Agarwal (DIN: 08599472), Mn Deepak Tiwari (DIN:08839075) and Ms. Tanusree Chatterjee
(DIN:08837933). In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

18. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE
APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR
Mr. Deepak Tiwari (DIN:08839075) was appointed as Non-Executive Director, Independent Category of
the Company by the Board of Directors at it's meeting held on 24th August, 2020. Ms. Tanusree Chatterjee
(DIN: 08837933) was appointed as Non-Executive Director, Independent Category of the Company by the
Board of Directors at it's meeting held on 24h Augtst,2020.

Mrs. Dipa Chatterjee Sarkar, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the

Company resigned from the office with effect from 13'h February ,2OZl.

Ms. Neha Gupta appointed as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company with effect from 13ft

February,202l.

'l'he details of Key Managerial Personnel who were appointed or have resigned during the financial year are

also covered under the Report on Corporate Governance.

19. NO. OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors have met 7 (seven) times during the financial year on 18-04-2020,11-07-2020,24-
08-2020,29-08-2020, l0-ll-2020, 13-02-2021 and 25-03-2021. The maximum time gap between any two
meetings was less than 120 days as stipulated under SEBI's Listing Requirements, 20lS.Details of meeting
are given in the "Corporate Governance Report" of the Annual Report.

2O.SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
A Separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on l0-l l-2020, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria the

lead lndependent Director presided the meeting. The Independent Directors at said meeting review the

performance of the non Independent Directors.

Details of the separate meeting of the independent Directors held and attendance of Independent Directors

therein are provided in the report on corporate governance forming part of this report.
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2l.DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Evcry lndependent Director has, at the first meeting ofthe Board and also at the first meeting ofthe Board
after his,/her appointment, in the financial yeat 2020-2021, given a declaration as required u,/s.l49ofthe
Companies Act, 2013 that he/she meets the criteria oflndependence.

22.AUDIT COMMTTTEE AS RIQUTRED U/S177(8) OF COMPANTf,S ACT, 20r3
Further, during the year there was no recommendation of the Audit Committee which had nol been
accepted by the Board.

23.VIGIL MECHANISM (WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY)
In pursuance to the provisions ofsection 177(9) & (t0) ofthe Companies Act, 2013, a Vigil Mechanism for
Directors and employces of the Company, to report genuine concems has bcen established. The Vigil
Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) has been uploaded on the Company,s website at

flvipil-blo!ver.Ddf

2,I.POLICY ON DIRECTOR,S APPOTNTMONT AND Rf,MUNf,RdTION ETC.
The Company's policy on Directors' appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualificalions, positive aftributes, independence ofa director and other matters;rovided u,/s.l7g(3) of th;
Companies Act,20l3 is given as Annexure C in lhe Annexure forming part ofihis Report.

25. RELATf,D PARTY TRANSACTION
All the related party transaction are entered on arm's Iength basis and are in compliance with the
applicable provisions ofthe Act and the SEBI (LODR) Regularions,2ol5.There are no materially
significant related party transactions made by the Company during the year.

26. Df,TAILS OF LOANS, GUARANTf,ES OR INVESTMf,NTS BY THf, COMPAN Y
During the year there was no loans, guarantees or investmenls made by the company u./s.186 of the
Companies Act, 20I3 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

27.I'ORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD
Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual
directors had been done during the year in lhe manner stated in the criteria for performance Evaluation of
the Directors ofthe Company as framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Co,nmittee ofthe Company
is given as Annexure D in the Anoexure forming prrt ofthis Report

28. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS Rf,PORT
a) INDUSTRY STRUCTURf, & DEVELOPMENT, OPPORTUNITIES & TtTRf,ATS AND

OUTLOOK
Demand and Supply of tea and fluctuations in tea prices due to shortage or oversupply and
carryover stocks have got a new dimension due to the impact ofCOVID_|9 pandemic. T_ea prices

lecor!9d n:y levels due to shortage of production as lock down and restrictions were imposed
form March 24, 2020. On reopening, tea bushes had to be prunes/skiffed once again and production
ofseason 20 restaned in phased manner,

b) RISK AND CONCERN
To maintain the level of operations, while ensuring strict compliance of guidelines issued and
adhering to all preventive measures, has been a new challenge. The employeis ofthe Company at
all levels have risen to this and there has not been any loss ofiife or fixed asiets.

Tie plantation indostry is largely dependent on the vagaries ofnature with factors like rainfall, its
dhtribuaion, temperature, relalive humidity and light intensity having irs impact on yield. Since
timel) information of weather plays a viral role for initiating sieps towards apilication of
fertilizers, chemicals and pesticides, steps are tuken at the estate; to g;1 the weaiher 

'information

well in advance.
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c) COVID-I9 PANDEMIC
l) Imprct ofthe CoVID-19 pandemic or the business -

The lockdown and rcstrictions imposed on various activities due 1() COVID 19 pandemic
have been complied with by the Company. production and sale oftea was affected due to
lock down in the early paft of 2O2O-21, during which rime high value first flush teas are
produced.

Ability to_maintain opcrations including the factories/urits/olfice spaces Iunctionirg
atrd closed down -
The Company partially resumed operations at its Tea estate from mid April 2020 as per
permissions from local authorities ensuring strict compliance to the guidelines issued and
also adhering to all preventive measures as per various Covernment directives.

Reste.ting of operations -
The operations ofthe Company restarted in line with the directives ofthe Central & State
Gofi and olher regulalory authorities. The tea bushes had to be pruned/skiffed and started
yielding new leaves much afteroperations resumed.

Steps tak€tr to ensure smooth functioning ofopcralions
Strict measures of social distancing, hygiene pracljces and sanitization ensured safety of
workers / employees at workplacc.

Estimation ofthe futur€ impact ofCoVlD-l9 on its operations
Health and hygicne practices have evolved orving to the pandemic. Regular field practices
have resumed and productivity and growlh oftea has reached normal levels.

2)

3)

4)

s)

o Details ofimpact ofCoVID-I9 on listed enti8's:
capital and financial resources
There has not becn any loss of capital and financial resources of the company.
Timely financing by Covid line of Credit helped maintaining flow of woiking
capital for arranging all inputs in time.

II. Profitability
With the progress ofthe tea growing season the estate oflhe company was able to
generale better revenue. Support by Go\4. of lndia by provident Fund employer
Contribution reduction from 12yo to 10% has helped as wages constitute a ia;ge
portion ofexpenses.

Liquidity position
The Iiquidity position ofthe company is comforlable.

Ability to service debt and other financing arrangements
The Company has been able to service its debt and olher financing arrangements.

Vl. Internal financial reporting and control

Internal financial repofling and control are jn place and functioning tvith full
connectivity.

Ill.

IV,

All Fixed Assets and Cunent Assets ofthe Company are safe. All employees at all
levels are safe.
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VI

VIII

Supply chain

Demand for its productrservices

Supply chain has continued as movement of teas and lea garden personnel ware
among the first to re start in a phased manner. Manures, fuel oil and all essential
inputs for health care ofbushes have been available.

7',)

Demand for the Company's tea is good and vibmnt.

Existing contracls/agreements where non-fulfilment of the obligrtions by {ny party
will have significenl impact on the listed endfy's Business.
The Company does not enter into forward/future contracts for it,s produce as a policy. The
loss in production value of first flush teas in season 2020 was recovered with high price
levels lor tea in 2021.

d)

e)

8) Oth€r relevant material updates about the listed entity,s business
The company has been able to maintain its business relations with its esteemed cuslomers.
Cofi. authorities and work force at all levels.

Sf,GMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORT,I,{NCf,
The Conpany is a Single Business Segment Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has adequate intemal control systems commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations which provide reasonable assuranc€ with regard to safeguarding the
Company's assets, promoting operational efficiency by cost control, previnting reveiue leakages
and emuring adequate financial and accounting controls and compliance witf, various statutory
prorisions.

A qualified and independent Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems and suggests impr;vements for
strengthening them.

FINANCIAL & OPtrRATIONAL PERFORMANCE
The details of Financial Performance and Operational performance have been provided in the
Report of lhe Directors.

e')

0

h)

HUMAN RXSOURCE DEVELOPMENT / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
The Company has built its workforce .lyith a diverse background ofindividuals essential for the
kind of_organization that it is. The Company constantly endeavouB to provide a platform where
people have opportunities to actualize their ma\imum potential through work which helps to
stretch their intellect. Continuous effor.s are on for a work-culture which encourages innovatior\
transparency in communication, trust and amity.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
The statements made in the Management,s Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be..Forward Looking Statemenls,, within the
meaning ofapplicable Securities Laws & Regulations and are based on the cunentlv held beliefs and
assumplions ofour management, which are expressed in good faith and in rheir opinion, reasonable.
Actual results could differ from those expressed and implied since the Company,s operations are
influenced by many extemal and intemal factors beyond the control ofthe Company. Several factors
could make a significant difference to the Company's operations which includei climatic conditions,
economic conditions affecting demand and supply, governmenl regulations and taxalion, natural
calamities, raw material price changes, domestic supply and prices conditions, company,s success in
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altracting and retaining Key Personnel, integration and re-structuring activilies, general business and
economic conditions overwhich the Company does not have any direct control.

30.

3t.

32.

t.

RlsK ]UANAGf,MENT POLICY
The Board ofDirectols ofthe Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy
for the Company including idenrification thcrein ofelements of rjsk, which in the ;pinion ofthe
Board, may threaten the existence ofthe Company. The Board monitors and reviews periodically
various aspects of Risk Management policy_ At present no particular risk whose adv;rse impact
may threaten the existence of the Company is visualized.

PR,EVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMf,NT AT WORKSHOP
Your Company is committed to provide a work environment which ensures that very women
employee is treated with dignity, respect and equality. There js zero- tolerance towards sexual
harassment invites serious discipl inary action.

The Company has established a policy against sexual harassment for its employee. Ihe policy
allows every employee to freely report any such act and promote action will be taien thereon. The
policy Iays down severe punishment for any such act. Further, your Directors state that during the
year under review, there were no cases ofsexual harassment reported to the Company pursuant to
the sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (prevention, prohibition and nedrissaiy act, 2013.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATf,RIAL
COURTS/TRIBUNALS

ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concem status and company,i operations in
future.

DIRNCTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMf, NT
In accordance with the provisions ofthe Secrion t34(3Xc) & 134(5) olthe Companies Act,2013,
your Directors confirm that:

Applicable accounting staodards have been followed in the preparation ofthe Annual Accounts for
the year ended 31"' March, 2021 with proper explanation relating to material departures, ifany.
Accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently andjudgments and estimates have
been made which are reasonable and prudent and have been applied so as to give a rue and fair
view ofthe slate ofaffairs ofthe Company in respect ofthe financial year ended 31"' March, 2021
and ofthe profit ofthe Company for that period.

Proper and suflcient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

Annual Accounts for the year ended 3l" March,202l have been prepared on the basis ofgoing
concem concept.

The Direclors have laid down the intemal financial controls to be Followed by the Company
detailing the policies and procedures and these intemal financial controls are a;equate and are
being operated effectively.

Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions ofall applicable laws
and such systems are adequate and operating eflbctively.

t8
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33. PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS' REMUNf,RATION U/S.I9? (T2) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(I) OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNEILATION
OF MANAGf,RIAL PERSONNEL) RULf,S, 2014

S.No. Name Designation

%
increase

in
remuner

ation

Ratio ofthe
remuneration ol
each director :

median
remuneration of
the employees

I Manoj Kumar Daga Managing Director NIL 5.l3: I
2 Ranian Kumar Jhalaria Director NIL

Swati Agarwal Director NIL
4 Balkishan Agarwal Director NIL
5 Dipak Tiwari# Director NIL
6 Tanusree Chatterjee$ Director NIL
,7

Dipa Chalteriee Sarkar @ CFO(Res,g,ed onl I 02 2o2t)

8 Neha Gupta CFo(Joincdon ll 02 2o2l )

9 Mira I{alder Company Secretary 20.83

^ Director's sitting fees is not considered for the purpose ofthis calculalion
# Mr. DipakTiwari was appointed on 24rh Augusl,2020 as Non-Executive Director, Independent Calegory.
$ Ms. Tanusree Chatterjee was appointed on 24h August, 2020 as Non-E\ecutive Director, lndependent
Category.

@ Mrs. Dipa Chatterjee Sarkar resigned on l3'h F ebruary,2O2l.
* Ms. Neha Gupta was appointed as ChiefFinancial O8'icer (CFO) ofthe Company on I3'h February, 2021.

The Company has 9lemployees as on 3l'rMarch,2021.

Percentage increase in the median remuneration ofemployees in the financial yeari 7.64: l.
Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees compared with percentile increase in
managerial remuneration is 0.5 l: l.

Wages of the Tea Garden employees are decided through a Tripartite Agreement between
Workers Associations, State Covemment and Represcntatives ofthe Tea Industry. Rcmuneration
paid to other Employees are fixed. No variable remuneration is paid. Remuneration paid is as per
rhe Remuneration Policy ofthe Companl.

34. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
As on March 31,2021 the Company did not have any employee in the catcgory specified in Rule
5(2) ofCompanies (Appointment and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

35. AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE REGARDING COMPLIANCI] OF CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCf,
Certificate rcgarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance is given as Ann€xur€ E in the
Anoerore forming part ofthis report.

36. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL
MEETINGS
During the year under review, the Company has duly complied with the applicable provisions of the
Sccretarial Standards on Me€tings ofthe Board ofDirectors (SS-l) and General Meerings (SS-2) issued by
The Institute ofCompany Secretaries oflndia (lCSl).
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37. STOCK EXCTIANGE(S)
The_application for revocation ofsuspension in trading ofEquity Shares ofthe Company at Bombay Stock
Exchange is awaiting their approval. The Equity Shares ofthe Company are lraded'at the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

38. APPRXCIATION
The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the support received from the Local Gram
Panchayat, Govemment Departments, Banks, Stakeholders and all others. Special thanks and appreciation
are conveyed to state Bank of lndia, our banker for providing covid line of credit to tide over difficult
times.

By Order ofthe Board
For NORIEN TEA & f,XPORTS LTD.

Regd.Office:
l58, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor
Kolkata-700001.
Date : 26d'June, 2021.

MANOJ KIJIII,{R DAGA
(Chairman & Mg. Director)

DIN:00123386
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OT DIRECTORS

ANNEXURE . (A'

FORM No.MR3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

tr'or The Finatrcial Year Ended On 31.rMarch,202l
(Pursuant to section 201(1) o;f the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. g of the Conpanies

(Appointfient and Remuneration personnel) Rules, 2011)

To,
The Members,
Norben Tea & Exports Limited
l5-8, Hemanta Basu Sarani,
3rd Floor, Kolkata-700001

We have been appointed by the Board of Directors of Norben Tea & Exports Limited
(L01132W81990PLC048991) (hereinafter called the Company) to conduct Secretarial Audit of
the Company for the financial year ended 3l't March, 2021.

We have conducted the secretarial audit for the compliance ofapplicable statutory provisions and
the adhcrence to good corporate practices by Norben Tea & Exports Limited (hereinafter called
the Company) having its Registered Office at l5-8, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'd Floor, Kolkata_
700001, West Bengal. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conductystatutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on our verification ofthe Company,s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of sccretarial audit, Wi hcreby
report that in ouJ opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial yeai
cnded on 31st March, 2021, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and alsoihat
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafier:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, registers, forms, and retums filed and other
records maintained by Norben Tea & Exports Limited (.,the company,) for the financial year
ended on 3lst March,202l according to the provisions oi

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder:

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regularion) Act, 1956 (.SCRA,) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Bono' ings;-(Not applicable lolhe Compdn! duting the Audil period)
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(v)The following Regulations and Cuidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
oflndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act')

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board ol India (Substantial Acquisition of shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 201 l;

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)Regulations,
2015:

fiirThe Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations,2009. (Not applicable to the compan! dutittg the Audit
period)

fi, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Cuidelines, 1999. (Nol opplicable to lhe company
during lhe Audit petiod).

(v) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (tssue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations. 2008. fNrl applicable to the compony duing lhe Aadit pe od).

(vi)The Securities and Exchange Board of India. (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer
Agents)Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing wirh client;

fvi, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; (?trot applicable to lhe conpany during lhe Audit period).

fvii, The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback ofSecurities) Regulations, 1998;
(Nol applicable lo lhe cohpany duing lhe Audit period).

(vi) The following Acts, over and above other laws are specifically applicable to the company as
per the Management Representation letter issued by the company ofeven date:-

(a) The Tea Act,l953and rules thereunder
(b) The Food Safety and Standard Act,2006 and Food Safety and Standards Rules,2ol I.
(c) The Tea waste control (Order) 1959
(d) The Tea Marketing Control Order,2003

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses ofthe following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to the board and general meetings issued by The
Institute ofCompany Secretaries of India.

(iD The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements)Regulations,20l5 entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange oflndia Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions ofthe Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above. Subject to the following observation
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(i) The Bombay Stock Exchange has suspended trading ofEquity Shares ofthe Company due
to non compliance of the eligibility requirement for continuous listing and the Company
has made an application on 28rh May, 2018 to BSE for revocatio-n of suspension o1
Company with Bombay Stock Exchange and awaiting for their approval.

The Equity Shares of the Company are tmded at the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited.

The Bombay Stock Exchange via email dated 24'h March, 2020 has allowed the Company
to do all the filings in compliance with the listing regulations and the Company is
complying with all the filing requirements on regular basis.

(ii) The Company was not having minimum six Directors on its Board as per Regulation l7 of
SEBI(LODR) Regulation, 2015, from April 0t, 2020 to August 23,2020 so fine
amounting to Rs. 4,55,000/- and Rs.2,70,000 was imposed on the company for quarter
ended 30'f June.2020 and 30'h Seprember.2020 respecriiel5.

(iii) The Company appointed Mr. Deepak Tiwari (DIN: 08839075) and Ms. Tanusree
Chatterjee (DlN: 08837933) as Non-Executive Additional Direcror, Indcpendent Category
w.e.f.24l08/2020 till the conclusion ofnext Annual General Meeting.

(iv) The Company was also not in Compliance with the provisions ofRegulation 23(9) ofSEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation,20l5 so fine amounting to
Rs.1,95,000/- was imposed on the compan) for quarter ended 30,h September,2020. the
Company has filed the disclosure ol Related Party Tmnsaction for the half yearly
ended30th Scptember, 2020 on 2lstJanuary, 202l.

(v) Mr. Deepak Tiwari (DIN: 08839075; and Ms. Tanusree Chanerjee (DIN: 08837933) were
appointed as Independent Director in rhc Jo'h Annual Ceneral Meeting ofthe Company for
a term of five consecutive yea6 commencing from 29Lh August. 2020 upto 28rh August,
2025.

We t'urther report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
cxamination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereol, on test-check basis, the
Company has complied with the laws applicable specifically to the Company.

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board ofDirectors that took place during the Audit period were carried out in compliance with
the provisions ofthe Act,

We further report that

(ii)Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

(iii)All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried unanimously as recorded
in the minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board. as the case
may be.
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We fu(her report that during the Audit period there are no specific cvents /actions which have a

major bearing on the Company's affairs.

Place: Kolkata FoTAGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES
Company SecretariesDate: 07th May,2021

CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal
Proprietor

C.P No.rl3,l93
M.No. : F760,1

UDIN:F007604C000256831

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure -A and forms
an integral part ofthis report.



.ANNEXURE A'

To,
The Members,
Norben Tea & Exports Limited
l5-8, Hemanta Basu Sarani,
3'd Floor, Kolkata-700001

Our report ofeven date is to be read along with this letter

l. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility ofthe management ofthe company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriatencss of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening ofevents etc.

5. The compJiance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit rcport is neither an assurance as to the future viability ofthe company nor

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the allairs of the

company.

Place: Kolkete
Dater 07ih May,2021

FoTAGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal
Proprietor

C.P No.:13493
M.No. : F7604

UDIN: F007604C000256831
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ANNEXURE: ,.8"

STATEMENT OF' PARTTCULARS T] ER THE CO NIES
(ACCOUNT S) RULES 2014
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ANNEXURE :..C,,

REMUNERATION POLICY
lntroduction
The Remuneration Policy ofNorben Tea & Exporls Ltd. (the "Company'), is designed to attract,
motivate and retain exceptional employees in a competitive market. The policy reflects the
Company's objectives for good corporate govemance as well as sustained long term value creation
for shareholders.

Remrmeration 10 Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees involving a balance
between fixed and incentive pay which reflect short and long lerm performance objectives
appropriate to the working ofthe Company and its goals.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS
Appointment of Directo(s) arc being done as per the applicable provisions and schedules of the
Companies Act.2013.

BOARD REMUNERATION
Efforts are made to ensure that the remuneration ofthe Board ofDirectors matches the Ievel with
comparable companies, whilst also taking into consideration board members' required
competencies, efforts and the scope ofthe board function, including the number ofmeetings.

Fixed remuneration
Whole Time Directo(s) of the Board of Directors will receive a fixed salary, alongwith basic
perquisites which is approved by the shareholders ofthe Company at a General Meetiog.
Sittinq Fees

The Board shall fix the sitting fees for the Direclors and Membcrs of the various Committees,
taking into account the extent ofrcsponsibilities and time commitment, the resulB oflhe Company
keeping in view fees paid by other peercompanies, which are similar in size and complexity.
Incentive Drogramme. bonus oav. etc.
Presently, the Company does not have any incentive programme.

&ejrbursement of expenses
Expenses in connection with board and committee meetings are reimbursed as per account
rendered.
Pension scheme
The Board ofDirectors is not covered by any pension scheme or a defined benefit pension scheme.
REMTINERATION TO OTHER Y MANAGDRIAL PERSONNEL
The Nomination & Remuneralion Committee submits proposals conceming the remuneration of
the other Key Managerial Personnel to ensure that the remuneration is in line rvith the conditions in
comParable companies.

Other Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting of
the following components:

Fixed salary
" Bonus
.. Benefits, e.g. use ofcompany car, telephone, broadband, etc.

Fixed salarv
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically
reviewed based on performance appraisal.
Variable components
Presently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable
component in the salary structure.
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Personal benetits
Other Key Managerial Personnel will have access to a number ofwork-related benefits, including
company car, free telephone, broadband at home, and work-related newspapers and magazines. The
extent ofindividual benefits are not necessarily same for each individual member ofthe Executive
Management.

OtherKey ManaSerial Personnel may be covered by insurance policies
'' Accident insurance
" Health insurance
,' Directors and Ofllcers Liability lnsurance

Notice oftqrmination
The employment relationship is terminable by giving a months' notice on either side.
Redundancy pay

As per the prevailing laws oftbe State Govemment.
Relirement Benefits
Other Key ManagerialPersonnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or a
defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension scheme under provident fund is provided.
Gmtuity is covered as per the Act.
Disclosure
The total remuneration ofthe Key Managerial Personnel is stated in the Annual Report.

REMI]NERATION TO OTHER EMPLOYEES
The Nomination & Remuneration Commitlee submits proposals conceming the remuneration of
other employees and ensures that the remuneration is in line with the conditions in comparable
companies.
Other Employees entitled to a compelilive remuneration package consisting of the following
componenls:
. Fixed salary
,' Bonus

Fixed salary
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically
reviewed based on performance appraisal.
Variable components
Presently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable
component in the salary structure.
Other benefiis
Housing,4lousing Repair Allowance.
Notice oftermination
As perthe prevailing laws ofthe State Govemment-
Redundancv Dav
As per the prevailing laws ofthe State Govemment.
Retirement Benefits
Other Key ManagerialPersonnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or a
defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension sch€me under provident fund is provided.
Gmtuity is covered as per the Act.

Crit€ria for det€rminino ourliffcations- e attributes and indeDendence ofdirector
The Company will follow the guidelines as mentioned in Schedule lV ofthe Companies Act, 2013
and under Regulation l9(4) of the Listing Regulation with the Stock ExchanSe(s) in
determining qualifications, positive atlributes and independence ofdirector.
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ANNEXURE:.,D"
THE CRITERIA FOR PERFO RMANCE EVALUATION OF THE

TORS COMP
The Board will assess its performance each year. The Nominalion and Remuneration Committee is
responsible to create a process for making such assessment to repo( annually to the Board on the
results ofthe assessment process The purpose ofthe assessment is to increase the effectiveness of
the Board. The various Committees ofthe Board shall annually conduct a self-assessment oftheir
performance and respective Terms ofReference
Formal annual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its Committees and
lndividual Directors shall also be done as oullined below:

Jlr: Company will follow a seven step system ofth€ following processes fbr evaluation:
Mf,THODOLOGY
What the Company hopes to achieve?
Clearly identified objectives will enable the Company to set specific goals for the evaluation and
make decisions about the scope ofthe review. Such issues as the coripleritl of thc ;erformanceproblem. the 5i/e ofrhe board. lhe sratse oforganisarional life cJcle and ;ignilicanr d.ritopm.nrs ,n
Ine Itrm s compettttve envjronmenl $ ill determine the issues the Company wishes to evaluate,
Who will be evalurted?
Wilh the-objectives for the evaluation set, the Company needs to decide whose performance will be
reviewed to meet them
The Company needs to consider three groups: the Board as *hole (includinB board commitees),
individual directors (including the roles ofchairpeBon and./or lead inaepenae_nt director), and key
govemance personnel (generally the CFO and company secretary).
What will be evaluated?
Having established the objectives ofthe evaluation and the people/groups that will be evaluated to
achieve those. objectives, the next stage involves the evaluation-becoming specific. It is now
necessary to elaborate these objectives into a number ofspecific topics to ensu're ihat the evaluation
(.1) clarifies_any potential problems, (2) identifies the rooi cause(sj ofthese problems, and (3) tests
the practicality ofspecific govemance solutions, wherever possibie. This is necessary whether the
board is seeking general or. specjfic performance improvements and will suit boar'ds seeking to
rmprove areas as diverse as board processes, director skills, competencies and motivation, or even
boar&oom relationships.
Who will be asked?
Intemally, Board members, the CEO, senior managers and, in some cases, olher management
personnel and employees may have the necessary information to provide feedback on elements ofa
company's governance system.
Extemally, owners/members and even financiar markets can provide varuabre data for the revicw.
Similarly, in some situationst govemment departments, majoi customers and suppliers may have
close links wilh the board and be in a position to provide useful inlormation on its perfo.mance.
What techniques will be used?
Depending on the degree offormaljty, the objectives ofthe evaluation, and the resources available,
b_oards may choose between a range ofqualitative and quantitative techniques.
Who will do the evsluation?
The next consideration in establishing evaluation framework is to decide t!ho the mosl appropriate

person is to conduct the evaluation. If the review is an inrernal one, the chairperson commonly
conducts the evaluation. Howevet there are times when it may be more appropriate to delegate
eith€r to a non-executive or lead director, or to a board commiltee. In'the'case oI extemal
evaluations, specialist consultants or other general advisers with expefiise in the areas ofcorporate
govemance and performance evaluation may lead the prccess.
What do you do with the results?
Since the Board as a whole is responsible for its performance, the results of the review will be
released to the board in arl but the most unusual ofcircumstances. where the evaruation objectives
are focused entirely on the board, board members will sinply discuss the results among
thems€lves.



ANNEXURN."E"

AUD RS' COMPI,I CE CERTIF'I CATE ON COR RATE GOVERNANCE

We have examined the compliance ofconditions of Corporate Colernance by Norben Tea
&.Exports Ltd- (,.the Company,'), for rhc year cnde,l o; Jl.rMarch,2021, as stipulated in
relevant provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Oblig;ions and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, ofthe said Company with stoik exchange.

The Compliance of conditions of Coryorate Govemance is the responsibility of the
Management. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementationi thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Covernance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of
the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, read with the matter described hereinabove, we certify thai the Company has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Covemance as stipulat;d in Chapter iV of Security and

I::fllg" !*.9 of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulitions,
2015 ('the Regulations'), ofthe said Company with stock exchanges.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viabilitv ofthe
Company nor the efficiency or efi'ectiveness with which the Management has con<jucted the
alfairs ofthe Company.

TO
THE MEMBERS OF
Norben Tea & f,xports Limited
(ClN: L0l 132W81990PLC048991 )

4l. N. S. Road,
4'h Floor, Room No.404,
Kolkata 700 001.

Place : Kolkata
Datcd : The 261h Day ofJune, 202t

For L.K,BOHANIA &CO.
Chartered Accountants

FRNo.3l7l36E

VIKASH MOHATA
Partner

Membership No:304011

Za



I

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) ofthe SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 20 I 5 ("Listing Regulation")

Company's Philosophy
Your Company has always believed in the concept of good corporate govemance
involving transparency, empowerment, accountability and integrity with a view to
enhancing shareholders value. The Company has professionals on its Board of Directors
who are actively involved in the deliberations ofthe board on all important policy mafters.

Board of Directors
The Company has an efficient and well appointed Board. The Committees are all duly
formed. Ms. Mira Halder, Company Secretary ofthe Company, acts as the Secretary to all
the committee meetings of the Company. All committee meetings are attended by such
other Executives as requiaed.

Composition ofBoard
The Company has an Executive Chairman & Managing Director and more than 50% ofthe
total number ofDirectors are Independent Dircctors who bring independent views/opinions
in the Board's deliberations and decisions.

During the financial yeat 2020-2021 the Board met 7 (seven) times. The gap between any
two meetings did not exceed 120 days.

I t8-04-2020
2 n-07.2020
3 21-08-2020

29-0E-2020
5 I0,r 1,2020
6 t342-202t
1 25-03-2021

# Mr. Dipak Tiwari was appointed on 24sAugust, 2020 as Non-Execurive Direclor, tndependenr Carcgory.

$ Ms. Tanusree Chanerje€ was appoinled on 2,{rh August, 2O2O as Non-Executive Di.ector, Independenr
Category.

The inlormation as uired under Schedule V ofListin ation is as under

2

TolalNo olMcob.6h'p/
chaimmsh,p held includins

5 3 2

2 2
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l 2

I VJ. Dipat fiwari $ar appornted on 21s Augusr. 2020 as \on-E\ecuti\e Direclor. tnd(pcndenr r 
.ategor).

$ M\. Ianuyee Chdfleriee uas appoinred on ,,4\ AuBUrl. 2020 as NonJ recut.\e Direcror. tndepen;enl
Category.

The names of the listed entities where the person is a Director and the category of
directorship.

None ofthe Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors holds any shares in the
Companl.
Number of committees in which a Director may serve excludes private limited companies,
foreign companies and companies under section g ofthe companies Act, zbi3 stratt te
excluded.
None ofthe Directors on the Board is a member of more than I 0 committees nor Chairman
ofmore than 5 committees [as per Regularion 26( lXb) of Listing Regulation] across all rhe
public limited companies in which he/she is a Director.
Membership/Chairmanship of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee ofall the Public Limited Companies have been considered only.
All the 

.Directors_ have made the requisite disclosures regarding Committee positions
occupied by them in other companies. The Board ofDirector; ofthe Company consisting 6
Nos. of Directors as on 31.03.2021. Out ofthem I Managing Directoq I fion_Executive
Director and 4 Independent Directors.

Relationsh between the Directors inter-se:

*No other Directors in the Board are inter se related to each other

Shares and Convertible Instruments held
in their own name, as on March 3l

by Non-Executiye
2021 are as follows:

Directors of thc
Com n

DIN:001233S.N
Listed Entities ofDirectorshiCate

I Joonktollee Tea & Industries Ltd Non-Executive
2 Ton i Tea Com Ltd Non-Executive

Name ofthe Director Name of other Director Name ofRelationshi
NA

Name ofthe Director No of Sharesu
Ran an Kumar Jhalaria Nil
Swati A arwal NiI
Balkrishan A I Nit

TiwariD Nil
Tanusree ee Nit
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Familiarisation Programme imparted to Independent Directors
The Company in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 25 of tle Listing
Regulations, has taken initiatives to familiarize its Independent Directors with the
Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in
which the company operates, business model of the company etc. through various
programs.

Skills/ExDe ompetencies of the Board ofDirectors

Experience in leading well-govemed organisations, with an

accountabilit and rlormance.

Experience in han
with an understand

Lrnderstanding of organisational systems and processes business and
regulatory environment, strategic planning and risk managemcnt,
understanding ofemerging local and global trends and management of

dling financial management of organisation along
ing ofaccounting and financial statements.

which is specified in the Regulation 25 of rhe SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and are independent of the Management of the
Company.

firmation ntheo nt the Board den fulfil
nditions s in these tions and a endent of Man men

The Board of Director is opinion that the Independent Directors arc fulfill the conditions

Skills and its description

s
h
E

,a
E

E

E

e'r

'a

E

E

!
?

,E

.H

6

t
d
P

E
s

Leadersh rience ofrunni rlse -ente

Ex rience of craftin Business Strat
ping long-term strategies to grcw small tea

plantation business, consistently, profitably, competitively and ina
sustainable manner in diverse business environments and changing
economic conditions.

Experience in develo

Finance and accountin Ex ce-

Ex ce ln oyerseern la and com lex Su Chain -
xE lence n elnrse comand suexper chai n ratlargeg onp pp v s,ope

man ment of atlonnnov s nu erstand lndage of em echno eserglng ogl
nc u tnd tal n fodi rmatio ten chno ans thd detr
Underslandi use oflnformation across the tea value chain -
Understahding the use information
anticipate market and weather
impacting business and appreciatio

across the value chain, ability to
driven changes and disruption
n of the need to realise value and

controls across the isation
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3 Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors and the composition,
powers, terms ofreference and the role ofthe Committee were laid out to comply with the
requirements of the Listing Regulation, and with the spirit of Colporate Govemance. The
Audit Committee also complies with the rclevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and performs all the roles as specified in the Listing Regulation. However, brief
description ofthe terms ofreference ofthe Audit Committee are:

a. Overview of the Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its
financial information

b. Recommend the appointmenrremoval of statutory auditors, nature and scope of audit,
fixation ofaudit fee and payment for any other services to statutory auditors.

c. Review with the managemcnt the quarterly and annual financial statements before
submission to the Board.

d. Review with the management, statutory and intemal auditors, the intemal audit reports
and the reports ofstatutory auditors.

c. Review of the adequacy and effectiveness of Internal Audit function, the intemal
control system of the Company, compliance with the Company's policies and
applicable laws and regulations.

f. Approval of appointment ofCFO (i.e. the whole-time Finance Director or any other
person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the
qualifications, experience & background, etc. ofthe candidate.

The Audit Committee may also review such matters as considered appropdate by it or
referred to it by the Board.

Composition a d olher delails
The Audit Committee of the Board comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan
Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal and Mrs. Swati Agarwal. Mr. Ranjan Kumar
Jhalaria, Chairman ofthe Committee, has expeft knowledge offinance and accounting.

Durin the financial eat 2020-2021 the Committee met 4 four times as follows:

'[he gap between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
The Nomination & Remuncration Committee INRC) was constituted by the Board of
Directors to evaluate compensation and benelits to Executive Director(s). The broad terms
of reference are to determine and recommend to the Board, rcmuneration payable to
Executive Directors, remuneration policy ofthe company and appraisal of performance of
the Directors. The Remuneration Policy is given in the Annoxurc D' to the Directors
Repo(.

Date otMeeths ofAudit Comnittee
I lt-07-2020 Mr. Rojo Kumd.lbaldia lrdcpcndcnl Dkcdor

Ms. Swati AEesal. IndeDendent Dire.tor
2 29-08-2020 Mr. R jmKum Jhaldi4 Independent Directo.

MB. Swati ApNd. IndcDcndcnl Diiector
3 l0- -2020 Mi- Rmj m Kumd Jhaldi4 Independenl Direclor

Mr. Ddl(rishan Agieal, Non-Executive Director
Mrs. Swali AeNal. lnderJendent Director

4 t3-02-2021 Mr. Ranjan Kumar.,halui4 lndependenr Dircctor
Mr. Balkisho ABNal. Non-Execulile Direclor
ME. Slvari Asdsal, IndeD.ndcnt Dircctor

I
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Composilion and olhet .lelails
The Committee comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan KumarJhalaria,Mr.
Balkishan Agarwal and Mrs. Swati Agarwal. Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria is the Chairman
ofthe Committee.

During the financial year 2020-2021 the Commiftee met 2 (two) timesas follows

Date .'f Meeti g ol Nonination & Rehuhention

l 11-O7-2020 Mr. Ranjm Kumd Jlalei4 lndependcnt Dircctor
Mrs. Swati  gm al, Independenl Direto.

2 t3-02-2021 Mr. Roje KumdJhaldia Independenl Director
Mr. Baltrishe AgNd, Non-Executive Direc&tr
Ms. Swati AsNd. IndcDendent Dnecror

Rem u re rul io n of D i recl ors
A sitting fee of Rs.2500/- is paid to the Non-Executive Directors for aftending each
meeting of the Board and Rs.l000/- for each meeting of the Committee. During the
Financial Year 2020-2021, following was the remuneration paid to Non-Executive
Directors for attending board meetings and other committee meetings:

Director Sitting Fee
(Rs.)

Mr. Ranian Kumar Jhalaria 28,500
Mr. BalkishanAgarwal 12,500
Mrs. Swati Agarwal 28,500
Mr. DipakTiwari 13,500
Ms. TanusreeTiwari 13,500

The remuneration and terms ofappointment ofthe Managing Director are approved by the
Board of Directors and the shareholders ofthe Company subject to Governmcnt approval
whenever requi.ed as per the provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013. The Company has
only one whole time Director, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga who is the Managing Director
(MD) of the Company. He has been appointed for a term of 5 years from 01/04/2019 to
3l/03/2024 as per the Agreement dated, 27107/2018.He is paid a salary of Rs.6,60,000/-
(Rupees Six Lakhs Sixty Thousand) annually, besides other perquisites. Notice or payment
in lieu of notice is not applicable as per the Agreement. The Company shall not pay any
severance fees as per the Agreement. The Company has not given any stock option.

During the Financial Year 2020-2021, following was the remuneration paid to Executive
Director:

Salary Conlribution Other
Ben€fit5

Totzl

(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs)

Mr. Manoj Kuma.
DaCa

6,60,000 21,600
5 yean from
0llO4l2O19 ro
3|03/2021

6,81,600



5. Stakcholders Relationship Committee
Stakeholders Relationship Commitree (SRC) was constituted by the Board of Directors.
The Committee responsible for looking after and dealing with grievance received from
investors of the Company.

Composiliot and othet details
The Committee comprises of 4 (four) Directors viz: Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr.
Balkrishan Agarwal, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga and Mrs. Swati Agarwal. Mr. Ranjan Kumar
Jhalaria is the Chairman ofthe Committee.

Ms. Mira Halder, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

Number of Sharehotderc complaints ved farrece I so Nit
Number not solved to the satisfaction ofshareholders Nil
Number of din com atnts Nit

6

W,ith effecr from 27s June. 201 I in rerms of SEBI Circular No.CIR/OI aAlZtZOtt, aateal" June. 2011, processing and updaring of all investor complaints in SEBI Complaints
Redress Sysrem (SCORES) is being done on behalfofthe Company by its RTA.

Share Transfer Committce (STC)
Pursuant to Schedule V of Listing Regulation, the Board has delegated the porvers ofshare
transfer, transmission, sub-division, consolidation etc. to Share Transfer Commiftee in
order to expedite the process of share transfer etc. As per Notification No.SEBI/LAD_
NRO/CN/20I8/24 dated 8th June,2018 and a press Release No.49/ZOIS dateJ 3'd
December, 2018 vide which, the new provisions regulate that except in case of
transmission or transposition ofsecurities, requests for effecting transfer of securities shall
not be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialized form with a
depository. As such share transfer committee shall hold meeting only when need arises
instead ofpresent practice ofonce in a fortnight.

Coupositiol and olher delails
The Committee comprises of 4 (four) Direcrors viz.: Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr.
Balkrishan Agarwal, Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria and Mrs. Swati Agarwal.

There were no valid requests pending for share transfer as on 3i.rMarch.202l. All
requests for dematerialisation and rematerialisation of shares received in the aforesaid
period were confirmed or rejected into the NSDL/CDSL system.

A call centre has been set up to attend to the calls ofthe investors. The call centre number
is (033) 2210-0s53.

7 General Body Meetings
Location and time, where Iast three Annual General Meetin held:-

Dare

2018 21.07.18 Rolary Sadm. 9.1/2. Chouringhce Roa4
Kolkara-700020

l0:30am. l9'l

2019 26.07.19 l0:10 &m 2
2020 29.09.20 l0r30am- Nil 59

VL

Thrcugh vid@ Conie.enciis avc)
/Other Audio Visual Mms {.O,\VM'.).



8.

No special resolution was passed during the previous year through postal ballot.
No special resohltion is proposed to be conducted through postal b;llot.

Means ofCommunication
The quarterly financial results are being sent to the Stock Exchanges and are being
published in the newspapers: The Financial Express (English daily);d in vemacular,
Duranto Barta (Bengali daily) as per proforma prescribed under the L'isting Regulation.

The same is also displayed on the Company,s W

This website also displays official news releases.

(,)
General Shareholders Information

AGM: Date, Time and Venue

(b) Financial Year

(c) Dividend Payment Date

(d) Listing on Stock Exchanges

(e) Stock code:
National Stock Exchange oflndia Limited
Bornbay Stock Exchange Ltd.

(f) Suspensionoftrading

ebsite: wrvw.no .com

The presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts, ifany, are displayed on
the website.

9

National Stock Exchange oflndia Limired.
Exchange Plaz4 5th Floor, Plot no: C/l
G Block, Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 O5t.

Listing fees for the yeai 2021-22 have not yet been paid.

Wednesday, the l lrh Augusr, 202t at i0.30 a.m.
Through Video Conferencing (,,VC,,) / Other
Audio Visual Means ("OAVM").

April 2020 to March 2021.

Bombay Stock Exchange Lrd,
PhirozeJeejeebhoy Towers, 25rr, Floor,
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001.

NORBTEAEXP
519528

The application for revocation of
suspension in trading of Equity
Shares ofthe Company at Bombay
Stock Exchaoge is awaiting their
approval.
The Equity Shares ofthe Company
are traded at the National stock
Exchange of India Limired.

page of

Z7

Please refer last
Directors'Report.



(s) Stock Market Price Data and performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE
Sensex:

High,lnw during cach month in last financjal vear

Month & Year
Market Price at NSE Sensex E

High Low High Low

ril '20 3.55 3.00 33887.25 27 500.79Ma '20 3.30 3.20 32845.48 29968.45
June'20 3.50 3.20 35706.55 32348.10
JUI '20 5.85 2.90 38617.03 3492',7.20

'20 15.50 6. r0 40010.17 36911.23
S '20 16.25 I0.45 39359.51 36495.98Oct'20 13.80 7.65 41048.05 38410.20Nov'20 9.95 ?.30 44825.37 39334.92
Dec'20 9.65 8.80 47896.97 44118.10
Jan '21 9.7 5 7.40 50 r 84.01 40160.46
Feb'21 8.00 6.60 52516.76 46433.65
Mar '21 7.55 5.80 5182 r.84 48236.35

(h) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
383, Lake Gardens, l.tFloor,
Kotkata _ 700 045.
Telephone:033_4072 4051; Fax: 033_4072 4050
E_mail: mcssta@rediffmail.com
Website trars

(i) Share Transfer System:
The Company's shares are covered under the compulsory dematerialization list and
transferred in dematerialised form through the dep;sitory system, of Uott NSUI A
CDSL. Furrher. MCS Share Transler Agenl Limirid also'being rhe Compan\.s demal
Kegrslrars. requests lbr dematerialization o[ shares are processed and conllrmation isgi\en.by lhem lo rhe respecrive deposilories i.e. Nalional Secrriri", O"po"iio,i iirlr"a
( \sDl ) and ( entral Deposirory Sen ices India I imired (CDSL) u irhin iS aa,,.
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Distribution of sharehold
% ofEquityNo. of Shareholders No. of Shares heldCategory (No. of

shares)
Demat
Form

Physical
Form

Demat
Form

Physical
Form

Demat
Form

From To Phvsical Form

13562t3 18.62 I1.54I 500 r5002 9337 2187406
433 137800 357481 1.t7 3.04s0l 1000 162

o.'11 2.45r00l 2000 5',7 186 83700 288100
3000 9 62 22400 156808 0.19 1.332001

89042 0.09 0.763001 4000 3 25 10200
5000 6 25 27900 I 17168 0.24 1.004001

206940 0.22 1.765001 10000 4 30 25400
0 22 0 6683442 0.00 56.88

10120 2494806 9255194 21.23 78.77
10001 and above

Total 15243
Grand Total 25363 r r750000 100.00

Shareholdin Pattem as on 31 March 202\
No. of shares held 7o of shares heldCategory

Promoters, Directors & Relatives 6044759 51.44

0.30Non Resident lndividual 34784
100 0.01Indian Financial Institutions

Nationalised Banks and Mutual Funds 14400 0.12
3.26Other Bodies Corporate 383105

5272852 44.87Public
Any other (clearing member)

Total 11750000 100.00

k( ) Dematerialisation of shares and Liquidity

Demat ISIN No. INE369C0l0l7

0) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, Conversion date and

likely impact on Equity :

The Company did not have any outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or Convertible
lnstruments as on 3l'r March, 2021.

(m) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: NIL

P.O. Kuripara, Dist: Jalpaiguri-735132, West Bengal(n) Plant Location:

(o) Address for correspondence: Norben Tea & ExDorts Limited
I 5B HemantaBasuSarani, l'dFloor,
Kolkata-700 001.
Telephone No: 2210-0553; Fax : 2210 0541.
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(b)

(p) List of all credit rating
obtained by the entity along
with any revisions thereto
during the relevant financial
year, lor all debt instruments
of such entity or any fixed
deposit programme or any
scheme or proposal of the
listed entity involving
mobilization of funds, whether
in India or abroad.

N.A

t0 Other Disclosure

a) Disclosures on materially
significant related party
transactions that may have
potential conflict with the
interests oflisted ent at

NIL

Detaiis of non-compliance by the
listed entity, penalties, strictures
imposed on the listed entity by
stock exchange(s) or the board or
any statutory authority, on any
matter related to capital markets,
during the last three years

The equily sha.es ofthe Company are listed on the Nalionat Srock
Exchange oflndia Limited with effect from June 26, I996.
There we.e no;nstances of non-complianc€ observed for
regulalions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disctosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 covered under SEBI SOp
Circularfor lasl two years.

As per Regulation l7 ofSEBI (LODR) Regulalions, 2015 (..Listing
Regulation"), the Board of Direclors oflhe top t000 list€d enrities
(with efecl fron April I. 2019) and the rop 2000 listed enrities
(wilh etTect liom April I,2020) shall comprise ofnot less than six
Directors.

The Company's interpretation was that rhis is applicable io all listed
entilies ac.oss NSE, BSE and MSEI, in which case Company does
not faU in the lop 2000.

June30.2020
Resularion l7( I) (c)
(Compositio. ofAo d)

Non-Detaih of The Company w6 not haring minimum six
Directo6 on ils BoMd liom April0l,20201o
Augusl23.2020

Days of For quaner endedJu.e 30.2020-91 days

[or quaner ended ,une 30. 2020
Rs.4.55,000

Scptemher 30. 2020
Re8llation l7(l) (c)
(Composition ofEoed)

Delaih of The Company sa not having minimun six
Directo6 on ils Bodrd from Ap.il 01. 2020 to
Ausun 23.2020

Days of lor quar6 ended Scplcmbe. 30, 2020 - 54

For quaner ended Seplenbq 30, 2020 -
Rs.2.70,000t
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2t)20
Regulation 2l(9) of SFAI
Regulalions, 2015(Retaled

(LODR)

rhe Compdy h6 ,ot ohplied rcgul.ri
undcr 23(9) oi SEBI (LODR) Regulatiors.
2015 within l0 days from the date of
Board Meeting 1-e-10/ | 1/2020.
lor quartcr ended Scptember 10. 2020 39

tsor quarter ended September 10, 2020 -
Rs.1,95.0001

(c) Details of establishment of vigil
mechanism, whistle blower
policy, and affirmation that no
personnel has been denied access
to the audit committee

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism / Whist,e
Blo\ er Policy. Il is amrmed lhat no personnel has been
denied access ro lhe Audit Comminee

(d) Details of compliance with
mandatory requirements and
adoplion of the non-mandatory
requirements

The Company has
mandatory requirem

complied with all the applicable
ents of Corporate Govemance as

specified under Schedule II ofthe Listing Regulation.

The Company has adopted the following discretionary (non-
mandatory) requirements zts stated in Schedule ll-part E,
Clause E ofthe Listing Regulation: (i) adopting the financial
statement with unmodified audit opinion, (ii) the intemal
auditor reporti ng directly to the Audit Committee

(e) Weblink to
Policy for determining material'
subsidiaries

N.A.

FamiliarisationProgrammefor
Independent Directors

http://norbe nlea.conr/odlTfamiliarisalionoro i{amme norbe

Related Party Transaction Policy f/
Preseryation of documents and
Archival Poli

h cum

Code ofConduct //norbentea. f-condu
Whistle Blower Policy

vll Policy on Hanassment ent f
Code of
Monitor and

Conduct Regulate, http://norbentea oom/Ddf/code of conduct to regulate m
and

lx Code of Practices and Procedures
for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive
lnformation

//not of d
e!-pdf

x Ethics Policy ethics licy.pdf
xl. Food Safety Policy & Objectives food icy and_objectives

xIl Risk
and F

Assessment in Plantation risk_assessment_injlantation and factory.pdf

x|t Policy for
Materiality
Information

Determination of
of Events or

policy-for det
formation.pdf

ermination_of materiality of events or_in

(f) Disclosure of commodity price
risks and commodity hedging
activities

N.A

4l
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!.pdf
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arclival policy.pdf



G) Details of utilization of funds
raised through preferential
allotment or qualified
institutional placement as
specified under Regulation 32
(7A)

NIL

(h) Certificate from a Company
Secretary in practice that none of
the Directors on the Board ofthe
Company have been debarred or
disqualified lrom being
appointed or continuing as
Directors of Companies by the
Board / Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such statutory

The Company has received a Cerlificate from Agarwal A &
Associates, Company Secrelary in praclice that none of the
Directors on the Board ofthe Company have been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors ofCompanies by the Board / Ministry ofCorporate
Affair or any statutory.

(i) Where the Board has not
accepted any recommendation of
any comm ittee ofthe Board.
Provided that the clause shall
only apply where
recommendation of / submission
by the committ€e is required for
the approval of the Board of
Directors and shall not apply
where p or approval of the
relevant committee is required
for undertaking aoy transaction
under these re lations

NIL

0) Total fees for all services paid bt
the ljsted entity and its
Subsidiaries, on a consolidated
basis, to thc Statutory Auditors
and all entities in the network
firm/ network entity ofwhich the
Statutory Auditor is a part.

NIL

(k) The sexual harassment ofwomen
at workplace (prevention,

prohibition and redressal) Act,
20t3

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment policy

in line with the requirements of lhe Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, prohibition and
Redressal) Act,2013. Intemal Complaints Committee (ICC)
has been set up to redress complaints .eceived regarding
sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual,
temporary, trainees) are covcred under this Policy. The
Policy is gender neutral. During the year under review, no
complaints with allegations ofsexual haras;ment were filed.

h2-



ll. D URX
C RATE AN
WITH REASONS THERF,O['

12. DISCL

NON PLIAN OF
ORT SUB-P

RE MENT
DET D

There is no non-compliance of any requirement of Corpomte Covernance Rcport of sub-
paras as_detailed above, thus no explanations need to be gir,en save and ercept as mentioned
in para (b) above.

osuRx oF THE EXTENT TO WHICH THE DISCRETI NARY
UIRE AS D RTE UL HAVE B

ADOPTED
Office to Non-executive Chairperson:Since the Company is headed by Exccutive Chairman,
maintenance ofseparate office is not required

The Intemal Auditors report directly to the Audit Committee.

13. DISCLOSURES OF THE COM IANCE CORPOR TE GOVER ANCE
CIFIED ULA 17 TO 27 CLA s TO

UB_RE TION OF RE TION

The Company has complied with the requirements ofaforesaid Regulations

I4. DISCI, OSURE H RESPE TTOD AT S{JS NSE AC UNT/
UNCI IMED SIISPENSE ACCOUNT
As on 3l''March.20
suspense/ unclaimed

I5. CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

16. CLARATI

21, there are no outstanding shares ofthe Company lying in the demat
suspense account.

The Company is duly placing a certificate to the Board from Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga,
Managing Director (CEO) and Ms. Neha Gupta, Chief Financial Officer fclClt of tle
Companl. in. accordance $irh the prorisions ol rhe proviso ro Regularion :-lp1a1 ol ihe
Listing Regulation. The aforesaid certificate duly signid by the said lersons in respect ofthe
l'inancial year ended 3 I 't March, 202 I has been placed beiore the Board at the Mieting held
on l8h May. 2021.

ONC ANCE TH THE MPANY' CODE

17.CODE O[' CONDUCT

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior
V.11ge1ery of the Company pursuant to Clause D of Schedule V of Listing Regulation
with Stock Exchanges.

All the members of the Board and Senior Management of the Company have allirmed
compliance with the said Code ofConduct on an annual basis.

The Company has framed Code of Conduct for all the Board Members, Key Managerial
Personnel and other Senior Executives of rhe Company who have affirmed compliance with
the same as on 3l'tMarch, 2021. Duties of rhe l;de;endent Directors have .,iituUly U".n
incorporated in the code. The Code is displiyed on the Company,s website:
r.r rvu Lrorbenrea.com. A declaralion sianed by rhe Managing Direcror &Ctb ii obrained by
the Company.

L3

CONDUCT



In pursuance ofthe Securities and Exchange Board of India (prohibition of Insider I rading)
Regulations 1992 (as amended), the Board has approved the ,Code of Conduct for
prevention oflnsider Trading,and entrusted the Audit C;mmittee to monitor the compliance
ofthecode. The Board at its meeting held on l4'h May,2015 has approved and adopted the
SEBI (Prohibition oflnsider Trading) Regulations, 20i5 relating to ihe code ofpractices and
procedure for fair disclosure of unpubrished price Sensitive Iniormation and f;ulated the
code ofconduct ofthe Company.

Date 26$ !ur,e,2o2l
MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Managing Director
DIN:00123386

At1



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

1. Report on the Audit ofthe Finanaial Statements:

(a) opinion:
we have audited the accompanyin8 financial statements of NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED ( " the
Company " ), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit & Loss

and the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date,
and notes to Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as financial statements").

TO THE MEMSERS OF

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN : 101132W81990P1C048991

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements Bive the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally

accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021 and its loss and its cash

Ilows for the year ended on that date.

(b) gasis for opinion :

we conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in lhe Auditot's Responsibilities Iot the Audit ol the Finonciol Stotements section of our
repoat. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
lnstitute of the Chartered Accountants of lndia (lCAl) together with the independence requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules

made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the lcAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufflcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

(c)Key Audit Matters :

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in formin8 our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. As per our audit and verification of books and records and

fact finding etc. we have determined that there are no separate key audit matters applied to this
company which are communicated to the audit's report. Our audit report in unmodified and self-

explanatory.

2. lnformation otherthan the FinanaialStatements and Auditor's ReportThereon:
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The

other information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, Corporate Governance Report, ManaSement Discussion and Analysis, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
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Our opinion on financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of ass!rance conclusion thereon,

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. lf bases on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

3. Management's Responsibility forthe Financial Statements :

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company ln accordance with the Accounting Standards and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; ma king .iu dgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records? relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
toin8 concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process

4. Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit ofthe FinancialStatements:
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an audito/s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements tan arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis ofthis financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with sAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: -

. ldentify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statementt whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risk, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial aontrols relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act,
we are also responsib,e for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial control systems in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit eviden€e obtained, whether a material uncertainty exist
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to
continue as a going concern. lf we concludethata material uncertainty exist, weare required to

draw attention in our audito/s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusion are based on the audit

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the company to ceaSe to continue as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manneathat achievesfair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it's probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. we consider quantitative materiality and qualitative

factors in (i) plannin8 the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii)

to evaluate the effect of any identifaed misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with Sovernance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timinS of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal controlthat we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with Eovernance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regardinB independence, and to communicate with them all

relationship and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those

mattersthat were of most siSnifica nce in the audit ofthe Iinancialstatements ofthe current period

and are therefore the key audit matters. We described this matters in our audito/s report unless

law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare

circumstances, we determined that a matter should not be communicated in our report because

the advere consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweith the public

interest benefits of such communication.

5. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirementr
5.1 As required by S€ction 143(3)ofrhe Act, based on our audit we report:

(a) We have souSht and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary forthe purpose ofour audit;

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as

it appears from our examination ofthose books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by

this Report are in aSreement with the relevant books ofaccount;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid finana;al statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 ofthe Act, read with Ru:e 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014j
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(e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors, as on March 31, 2021,taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disquuriri"a'ur on r".ar,:r,2021from being appointed as a directors in terms otSection t6a(Z) oitne ecii
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of theCompany and the operatjng effectjveness of such controls, ."fer to our s"par"te n"port in

"ANNEXURE -A", Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
"Oeqracy "na 

oper"tingeffectiveness of the Company,s internal financiat controls orer financ 
",.;r;;;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Audito/s Report in accordance withre,quirement of section 197(16) of the Ac! as amended in o* oprion'una ,o the best of ourinformation and accord,ng to the explanations given to us, the remun".ail* i"io uy tf," corpanyto its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisjons of ;.,ion iiz or,r," a.r,
(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditot s Report in accordance with Rule 11of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amendea i" 

"r. "p_i"io-" ""0 
," ,t 

" 
U"r, otour information and according to the explanations given to us :

{i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which impact its financial position in itsfinancial statements;

(ii) The company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for whichthere were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii)There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the lnvestor Educationand protection Fund by the Company.

5.2 As required by the Companies (Auditors, Rrport) Order, 2016 (,the Orde/,), as amended, issued bythe CentralGovernment of tndia in terms of sub_section (11) of;e.tion faa of ttre lct, we give in the"ANNEXURE- 8,,, a statement on the matters speaified in paragraph 3 and 4 ofthe said Order.

For 1,. X. EOHAN|A & CO.
Firm Registtotion No. 317136E

Chortercd Accountonts

VIXASH MOHATA
Partner

Membership No.3O4O17
U D I N : 2 1 3040 1 LAAAAF B 282 6

41, N S Road,
4th Floor, Room No. 404
Kolkata- 700 001

Dated : The 26rh Day ofJune,2o2l
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"A"{NEXURE_A" TO THE INDEPENOENT AUDITOR'S RTPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINAN STATEMENTS OF
NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

Report on th. I Financialco ntrol under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 ofSection 143 ot the Companies
Act. 2013 l'the ) - Reterred to in oarasraoh 5.1(fl of our reDort of even date to the financia!
statements oI the Comoanvfor the vear ended March 31. 202li

We have audited the internal flnancial controls over financial reportjng of NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTMITED
("the Company"), as of March 31, 2021, in conjunction with olr audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibilityfor lnternal Financial Controls
Ihe Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on Audit of lnternal
Financial controls over financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of chartered Accountants of lndia. These
responsibilities includes the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportin8 (the "Guidance Note,,) issued by the tnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of lndia and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internalfinancial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reportinE included obtaining an understanding of internalfinancial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's jldgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud oa error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropraate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting ofthe Company.

Meaning of lnternal Finanaial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliabillty of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertaio to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detajl, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions ofthe assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accountinS principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unautho zed acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a materialeffect on the financial statements.

4q



limitations of lnternal FinancialControls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financjal controis over financiaj reporting, including thepos_sibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to erroror fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internat financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
ln our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Companyhas, in all materiar respects, an adequate internar financiar contrors system over fi;nciar reportin8 and suchinternal financial controls over financial reporting were operating eff;ctively as at varch 3t, 2021, based onthe internar contror over financiar reporting criteria estabrisheiby ttre companv consioerinS the essentiar
components of internar contror stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of rniernar Financiar contrors overFinancial Reporting issued by the lnstitute ofChartered Accountants of lndia.

For L. K. BOHANTA & CO.
Fim Registration No_ 3177:68

Chottercd Accountants

VIKASH MOHATA
Partner

Membership No_ 3U011
U D I N : 2 1 3040 1 1 AAAAF B 28 26

41, N S Road,
4th Floor, Room No. 404
Nolkata - 700 001

Dated : The 26th Day ofJune, 2021
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"ANNEXU RE-B" TOTHE INDEPENDE NT AUDITORS' REPORT

1 ln respect ofthe Company's - Property, plant and equipment i.e. Fixed Assets:
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, includin8 quantitative details and

situation of Fixed Assets.

(b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, designed to
cover allthe itemsovera period ofthree years, which in ouropinion, is reasonable having regard tothe
size of the Company and nature of its business. pursuant to the program, a portjon of the fixed assets
has physically verified by the management during the yea. and no material discrepancies between the
books records and the physicalfixed assets have been noticed.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us the records examined by us and based on
examinatlon of the conveyance deeds/registered sale deeds provided to us, we report that the title
deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in
the name ofthe Company as at the Balance Sheetdate.

2. ln respect of its lnventories:
(a) The management has conducted the physica I verificatio n ofinventory at reasonable inteNals.
(b) The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as compared to books records whjch

has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not material.

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to the companies, firms or other timited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.
AccordinBly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

4. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and security.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and hence the directives jssued by the Reserve
Bank of lndia and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provis,ons of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules,2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from public are not
applicable.

5- We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules,2014
prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been maintained. We have, however not made
a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

7. {a) Ihe Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including Provident fund, Employees State lnsurance, lncome Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other
statutory dues applicable to it.

(b) Accordjne to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of Paovident fund, Employees State lnsurance, lncome Tax, Goods and Service Tax and other statutory
dues were outstanding at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date on when
they become payable.

5.

5l

Refered to in oaraqraph 5.2 under the headinp of.,Reoort on Other Leaal and Resulatorv Reouirements,,
ot our report of even date to the financial statements of the Companv for the vear ended March 31.
ZO27l



/c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the documents and
records the disputed statutory dues which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
are as under:

Serial

No

Name of
Statute

Nature of

Aleg

Financial Year to
which the matter
Dertains

G!)
Forum

dispute is

oendine

Paid under
protest

(RsJ

1 Department of
lncome Tax

lncome Tax 1995 - 1995 24,6s,OOO/- DCIT,

Kolkata
Adjusted

against TDs

2 Department of
lncome Tax

lncome Tax 2071- 2012 a,4s,67O/- crr(A),
Kolkata

7,69,344/-

3 Department of
lncome Tax

lncome Tax 2013 2074 62,55,770/- crT(A),
Kolkata

9,39,366/-

4 Department of
lncome Tax

lncome Tax 2014 - 2075 s,ao,97o/- crr(A),
Kolkata

1,1a,75O/-

5 Department of
lncome Tax

lncome Tax 2017 - 2018 '1,,71,464/ - crr(A),
Kolkata

7,21,O00/

8. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has taken loan either from financial institutions
orfrom thegovernment and has not lssued anydebentures.

9. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
including debt instruments and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not
applicable to the Compaoy and hence not commented upoo.

10. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanation given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its Officer or Employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

11. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanation given by the
management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite
app.ovals mandated by the provisions ofsection 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act.

12. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore/ the provisions of clause 4 (xii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

13. ln our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

14. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanatjons given by the
manaSement, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

52
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15. AccordinB to the information and explanation provided by the management, the company has not entered
rn any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them as referred in section 192
of the Act.

16. ln our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve bank of
lndia Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

For l. (. BOHANIA & CO.

Firm Registrotion No. 3177i6E
Chortered Accountonts

VIXASH MOHATA
Partner

Membership No. 304011
U Dl N : 2 1 3 040 1 1 AAAAF 82826

41, N S Road,

4rh Floor, Room No.4o4
Kolkata - 70O 0O1

Dated : The 25s Day oflune,2021
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NOI{IIEN TE  & IJIPORTS I,INlI'IIN)
CIN No, L01l32lVB1990trt.C04899r

artl-ANC! SHEET  S AT 31ST Nl,'rltdt.2021

As at 3lst llar.h,2021 As at 31st l\1arch, 2020

,1ssrirs

NON.CURRIN'IIASSETS

Propert, p.rland Eouipment

Oth€r FinanclalA$ets
Non-CutrentIaxAsset (Ne0

Dete(ed tax a$d5 {net)

339,794.58

2,049,493.5O
3,142,326.89

8,132,60a.59

560,101.30
2,601,693.50

4,114,330 65

3,896,970.32

5

6

8

9
10

201,aao,76a.70

14,3O4,221.56

229,649,942.96

L44,549,277 .54

7t,173,646.77

CURRENTASSETS

Biological A$et, othe. thaf bearer p ants
Fifa.cialAs5ets

lfve3tments

cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank ba ancesotherrhan Note 14

OtherF naf.ia Ass€rs

2,7a1,al0.30
1,436,257,23

715,611.00

125,000.00

24.751.44

2,293,395.C,

715,6tl.AA
3,245,a35.00
1,926,097.00

11

L2

7,045,a36.53

1,066,499,93

9,3S6,000 29

291,415.37

13

6

15

a

16

IJOUITY AND I,IAAIIITII]S

EOIJTI'Y

LIAI]II,tTIES

NOIi-CU RR EN1' I,IAB ILITI ES

CURIIENT I,IAIIII,ITIES

otherFl.ancial Li3bil tes

117,500,000.00

3!,O49,271 .54
117,500,000 00

t9,295,a15 05

2)

1t5,795,8r5 05

17

la

19

20

43,539,262.OO 43,539,262.A0

4,428,685_OO

s1,188,59!.00 51,188,598 00

3,95)6a4.AA

27

22
23

23,O74,620.37
4,952,373.26

542,113.22

23,1)8,35624
4,524,O81 .A9

23,609,046.35

Employ.e s Benefits oblgatons
560,174.00

1,493,710.45 1,129,457,10

2:1t1,120.41

2,376,435.00 30611,92a.13

226,611,,i05 05l ohl Equityand Liabilities

2a

24

I
2

3

229,649,932.96

Sign fl.ant AccountinC Policies
Sgnlficantludgehents & Est mates
The Notes are an nteEral lart of rhe Frnancia Srateme
Ar pe.our neportan.exed ofevef date a._. \ tl

MANOJ (UMAR DAGA
Chairman & N,8. Drrcctor

(DlN:001233861

U-\( l+ol{0"-
IlIIRTl HAI,DIJII

Il.nrbe.ship No.A45:14:

:-r l.JL\..-Ior L, K, BOIIANIA &CO
Chartercd AccountanLs

3\7136

vII( sH lvto 
^]A

Iledbc.shi! No.304011

I'AN'AN I{UMAR JI IAt,AI{IA
lndepends)rDire(or

(DIN 05:15:t976)

Date :-Ihe 26th dayof lune, 2021.

s4

NLT/A dUP1,^
Chrelf inan.lrl 0tlLcer



NORBEN lEA & EXPORTS LIMITID
CIN No. 1,01132W81990PLC0.189r1

STA'TIJ]IIENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3151-IITARCH 2021

31st Mar.h,2021 31st March,2020INCOME

Revenueiiom operations

EXPENSES

Changes n nventories of Finlshed Goods, Stock

Emp oyee Se.efts Expense .

Depreciaro andAmoru5ation Erpe.se

P.o litlILoss] before Taxes

Total Conrprehensive Incohe tor the period

26

21 594,046.53
44,141,147.86

651,904 31

7S,277,8tu,Zl .19,395 206.17

{341,24s,00)
34,539,694.29

6,a44,910.02

L6,736,168.79

1,535,002.0r1

34,919.570.) 2

1,774,12115

t6,742,445.96

29

30
31

34

62,289,A25,13 64 52'l

(15,132,495 45)12,923,818,48

ln.omeTax For Earler Ye.r

Profit/0,oss) fo. the period
Other Comprehenrive hcome
i. lt€msthatwl not be reclass fied to profit orloss
i, ncometar relat ngtothese ltems

other comprehensive tncome for the Year(Netofrax)

33

1,375,000.00

{s64,200-00)
(132,690.24)

777,542.21
262,020 00

671 177 33

{16,067,692.78)

l27,aa4.AO)
7,1a0.00

(2?6,217.00)

58,25100

{20,704,00 1167,966.00

11,750,000

1,00

(16,23s,6s3.73)

Non na Valle oishares (Rs.10)

We8hted Average Number of Ordinary Shares outstand nB

Baslc & D uted Earnings PerShare

Slgnificant Accounting Policies

sief ificant l!Cgements & E5timates

711)

I
2

3

The Notes arean inteAral part ofthe Fi.anclal Statehents
As per oor R€port anrexed ofeve. date
For l l( BOHANIA& CO,

Firm Regsvation No. 317136E

f.- \. o -:\

Chalrman&Me.Dredor
(DrN:00123336)

ITANJAN I(UMAR ]IIALARIA
I de!endent Di.e{Jor

(DIN,05353!75)

X

o

Date :The 26th dayollufe, 2021.

Y\,rs \lol tp^-
MembeBh p No.304011

l,!tlllA HALDER

Mcmbcrship No.An 5:j13
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NqEBEN TEA COMPANY LIMITEO

CASH FIOW STATEMENTTOR TH Y€AR €NOED 315TMARCH, 2021

crN No, t01132W81990P!C04a991

Forthe Forthe
Yearended Yearended

_ 31st March r0r1 31s

A. CASH FIOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVIIIES:

Net pronv(Los) betoretax L2,923,a7a_48 t1s.132,49s 45)

adjusrmenrsto.:
Depreciation & Ahortisat on Expe.5er
(Ga n)/Losr on Disposal oi A55ets

conviburion to 6ratuiry Fund

Mat Cred t Eni dement

{ca n)/Loss on Ma.kto Market ol rnvestme.t
lnterest Received

Dividend

Operati.B Profit before working capita changes

Adiuslments lor:
(r,.,"de)/Dc.,ea5e 1 r.ade Rqe.doF
(h.'eo se,/Dec, ea r .r ln,"-ro .e\
thcrease)/Decr€ase ln other Flfac al &sets
1n(ease)/Decrease h Other C!(ent Asset5
h.'e"ie1De(ease) 1 l'od. Pdydo -
n(ease/(Decr€ase)i. EmployeeBenefltObliganons

ricrease/(Deoe e) ln othercuftert Liabiities
I', -o5e/lDe.,pase,'orhp rrndl.kl, db. re!
rd-l I rprared io- ope.ar o, :

0irect Tax (pald)/R€fund (Ne0

Nel Cash lrom op€rating acrivitie5

B, CASH FLOW FROM IAVESrING ACIIVITIES :

Purchase ofFixed Assets includlng Capitalw P {ner oi5ub5idy)
Proceeds from sale oI Alsets
lnlerest Received

Dividend Received

Net Cash used in investjns activities

C. CASH FLOWFROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borowinss
P.oceedrlRepayment) of Short Term Botrowings
Proceeds/8€payment)LongTermborowingfrom Bank&Financal nsttltion
Proceeds/(RepaymenO ot Unse.ured Loans
unsecrred Loans (extended)/Becovered

ntere5t&Fna.ceCharges
Net Cash used in Fina,cingActivities
Net nne e/(Dedease)rn c n and cash equ valents (A+8rc)
cash and ca5h equ ralenrs atthebesi.n nsofrheyear
cash and cash equva e.ts at the end otthe year
Earmark Salanceseith Aank
Cash & Banl Balancer at the end oflhe year

4,959,497.53
5,363.19

{133,321.00)

{19,718.00)

{32s,209,001
(17s.00)

7,714,72215
'i9,521.44

(508,359 00)
(52s 00)

25,At69,31L12 (4,326,606.51)

1262,603.A6)
,43,533.44
531,554.00

015,aa4,6?)
432,225.)7
364,653.45

75,455.45

1,3.14,326 33

(113,375 00)
(79,.1d9 48)

2,508,206.36

1133,396 U)
1.161,133 00

5t5,30J 56{1,J94,37t,Jal

(909,756.00) (604,331001

la) 23,479,97A.16 1,392,286 23

1r2,26t,3A4.91)
,5,000.00

325,2A9,OO

175.00

13,001,411.58)

603,359 00

62s.00
(81 111,361,000.91) 11 ,392,427.531

|J01,)35,a?)
(106,745.00)

(7,s42,591-00)

1,120,835.00
(6,344,910.02)

392,343.13

179s,625 00)

12,225 00C 00

i,000,t00 c0

lt 111,1221\)
(c) {!2,077,1,16.39)

(453,169.04) 1,17,35163

7,436,25t.23
?15,611,00

1,173,309 27
715,61100

Note : 1. FlEuresshow. i. bracketshowscashoutf ow.

2. Previousyeal5 Figures have bee. regrouped/reatranged wherever necessary.

This E the Cash Flow Statement .eiered to in our report of eve. date.

For l, (, BOHANIA & CO.

Flrm ReEistraUon No. 317136E

Member5h p No.304011

Chai.man & Mg.oire.tor
lDlN:00123386)

RAN]AN XUMARJHALARIA

hdepe.dent Dtector
{DlN:05153976)

Member5h p No a,15:143

Date iThe 26th day oflune,2021.
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Note No.1
CORPORATE INFORMATION
Norben Tea & Exports Limited is a company ljmlted by shares, incorporated and domiciled in tndia. The Company ts

engaged;nthe business of grow ing and manufacturing ofTea and providing Commission.

Note No, 2
EASIS OFACCOUNTTNG

The financial statements of the company have been prepared n accordafce with the lndian Accountifg Stand.rds (lnd
As) as per the Companies (lndian Accountlng Standards) Rules, 2015 notified !nder Section 133 of the Conrpanies Act,
2013 ("the Act") and other relevant provjsions of rhe Act.

Company's financial statements are presented in tndian Rupees, which is also its fJnctjonal currency.
The standalone lnd AS financia, statements have been prepared on historicat cost baSis except the following ttems:

a) FinanclalAssets- Current lnvestments in Shares ValuedatFairmarketValue.
b) Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities - Valued at fair va ue on Eatance Sheet approach.
c) Unrealised Gain/Loss on Non Current tnvestments - The management is of the opiniof that the

investment is long term and strategic in nature. The managernent does not foresee any dimunition in
value ofthese investments; hence no provision is required to be made.

Note No.3
Significa nt A€counting Policies

included in th€ net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability .re rec

This note provides a list of the siSnificart accounting policies adopted in th€ preparation of these financiat stareffents.
These policies have been consistently applled to all the years presented, !ntess otherwise stated. The financal
statements are for N4/s Norben Tea & Exports Limited (the 'Conrpany').

3.1 Fair valuation of lnvestm€nts
Under the previous GAAP, investments in equity instruments and mutual funds were ciassilied as long term
investments or current investments based on the intended holding period and realhabjlitv. Longterm
investments were carried at cost less provision for other than temporary decline in the value of such
investments. Current investrnents were carried at lower of cost and fair valr.re. Under lnd AS, these investments
are required to be measured at fair value. The resulting fair value changes of these investments (other than
equlty instruments designated as at FVOCT) have be€n recognlsed in retained earoings as at the date of
transition and subsequentlyin the profit orlossfortheyearended 3l Maaah 2021.
Fair value changes with respect to investments in equity instruments designated as at FVOCT have beef
reco8nised in FVOCI - Equity investments reserve as at the date of transitlon and subsequently in the other
comprehens,ve incomeforthe yearended 3l March 2021. l

3.2 Borrowings
lnd AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards originat on of borowings to be deducted from the
carrying amount of borrowings on initial recognition. These costs are recognised in the proftt or oss ov€r the
tenure of the borrowjng as pan of the interest expense by applying the effective interest rate method.
Under previous GAAP, these transaction costs were charged offto Statement of profit & Loss or c.pralzed!^/irh
the qualifylng asset as perthe applicatjon ofthe corresponding Borrowings.

Remeasurementsof post-employment benefit obligations
Under lnd AS, remeasurements i,e, actuarialgains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts
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income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the
profit or loss forthe year.

Retained Earnings

Retajned earnings as at April 1, 2016 has been adjusted consequent to the above tnd AS transit on adjustments

Oth€r Comprehensive lncome
Under lnd AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period shoutd be included in profit or loss for the
perjod, unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. ttems of iniome and expense that are not recognised in
profit or loss but are shown in the statement of proftt and loss as ,other comprehenstve income, includes
remeasurements of defined benefit plans and fair vatr.re gaifs or (tosses) on FVOCT equrty instruments and debt
instruments. The concept of other comprehenstve income djd not exist under previous GAAp

3.6 Deferred Tax

lndian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, whch focuses on
differences between taxable profits and accountine profits for the period. tnd As 12 requtres ehtities to accounl
for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the
carrying amoLrnt of an asset or liability in the baiance sheet and its tax base. The applcaton of tnd AS 12
approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new tcmporary differences which was not reqLired
under lndian GAAP.

ln addition, the various transitional adjustmenls lead to differenr temporary differences. According to the
accourting policies, the company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax adjustm€nts are recognized
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a separate compofent of equity.

3,7 Re-classifications
The Company has done the following reclassifications as perthe requirements of Ind,AS:
Assets/ liabilities which do not meetthe definition offinancialasset/financiailiability have been reclassified to
other asset / liability.
Remeasurement Bainlloss on long terrn emptoyee defined benefit pians are re classif:ed from statemenr oI
profit and loss to OCl.

Tire Company has re-classified unpaid dividend batance form cash and cash equivatents to other bank balances.
Excise dutyon saleswas earliernetted offwith Sales, has now been presented separatety.
Property Plant and Equipment, lnta ngibie Assets and lnvestment properties
As permitted by para D5-D8B of lnd AS 101, the Cornpany has etected to coftinue with the carrying v.tres undcr
previous GAAP for all the items of property, plant and equipm€nt. The sarne etection has been ma.le in respect
of intan8ible assets also.

i) Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at their originat cost less depreciation. cost inctudes incidental expenses.
Profits or losses on sale of tan8ible fixed assets.are included in the starement of profit anrj toss and
calculated as difference between the value reatized and book vatue. Capitalwork in progress is stated at
cost. Subsidies received in respect oftangjble fixed assets are deducted from the cost of respective assets.

ii) Cost of Plantations being Bearer Plants are valued on historical cost basis based on the cost incurred for new
extension beginning from uprootin& planting, rejuvenation and rnaintenance etc. ti the time it started bear fs
f ruits/Green Tea leaves.

iii) Capital work-in pro8ress is stated atthe amount expended up to the stage of completion ofthe project.

Depreciation
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight Life Method on all assets excepr Iand. Depreciation on
tangible assets is provided over the useful iives ofas stima

3.8

purchased / sold during the period is proport
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respective individual estimated useful lives on a StraiSht Llne basis commencing from thB date assets are

available to the Company for use. The management estimates the useful lives for the fixed assets are as follows :

Useful L fe
(years)

Sr,No.

1

2 Plant & Machinerv*, Roads & Bridges, Water lnstallation*, lrrigation
Equipments and tlectric lnstallation

3 Furniture & tittlngs* and Ring & Tubewell* 2A

4 Motor Vehicles* 15

5 Computer'
6

1 Eearer Plants+

Name of the Assets

Factory Building* & Non' Buildin

Office ui

60
30

6

5

10
, For these class of aslets, based on internal assessment and independent technical evaluation carried out by

externalvaluers the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over
which management expects to use these assets.

Hence the useful livesfortheassetsisdifferentfromtheusefullivesasprescribedunderPadC ofSchedLrlell
of the Companies Act, 2013. Freehold and Leasehold land are not depreclatcd.

3,9 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equlvalents jncludes cash on Haia, castr at 8ank, Cheque ln Hand and other shod term highly

liquid investments with an oriSinal maturity ofthree months or less.

3.10 Provisions
A provlsion is recognized when the €ompany has a pr€sent obligation as a r€sult of past event, lt js probab e that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation- Provisions are not discounted to their preseft value and

are determined based on the best estimate reqLrired to settle the ob lSation at the reporting date. These

estimates are reviewed at each reportlng date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Where the company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance

aontract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtuallv

cenain. The expense reJating to any provision is presented in the statement of proft and loss net ol any

reimbursement.

3.11 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividlng the net profit or oss for the period attribLrtab e to equltY

shareholders (after deductlng preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted averaBe n!mber of

equity shares outstanding during the period. Party paid equitY shares are treated as a fraction of an equlty

share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share d!ring
the reporting period. The weighted average nurnber of equlty shares outstanding during the period is adjusted

for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights ;ssue, share split, and reverse share split (cofso idation

of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstandinE, without a corresponding change in

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the ret profit or loss for the period attribltable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding durlng the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential eq(]lty shares.

Contingent Iiabilities
Provision of contingent liabilities are not made, unless & untll the demand raised by statutory authoritles,

against which the company has preferred an appeal which is pendlng with the dlfferent forum of the said

3.12

authorities are ascertained

6\



3.13

3.14

Recognition of Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivab e. Amounts d sclosed as revenue
are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes, goods and service tax (GST) and amounts
collected on behalf ofthird parties.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be.reliabJy measLrred, lt is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entjty and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company's
activities as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type oftransaction and the specifics ofeach arrangement,
Sale of goods

Sales represents invoicedvalue ofgoods sold excludingGoods and Servicetax
Income frcm Investment
lncorne from lnvestment other than investment ln shares of companies is included, together with related tax
deducted at source in the Statement of Proflt & Loss on an accrual basrs. lncome from investmert n shar€s of
companies is recogniu ed on actual realisatlon.
lnterest lncome
lnrerest income rs recognrzed on accrual bdsr,.
Dividends
Dividend income is recognized when the companyt right to receive dividend is established by the reportinC
date.

Estimates
As per para 14 of lnd AS 101, an entity's estimates in accordance wlth ind AS at the date of transition to lnd AS

at the end of the comparative period presented in the entity's first Ind AS financlai statements, as the case mav
be, snould be conslstent with est;mates made for the same date in accordance with the previous GAAP unless

there is objective evidence that those estimates were rn error. However, the estimates should be adtusted to
reflect any differences in accountlng policies.

Note No.4
SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS & ESIIMATES

As per para 16 of the standard, where application of lnd AS requires an entity to make cenain estimates that
were not required under previous GAAP, those estimates should be made to reflect conditions that ex sted at
the date oftransition or at the end of the comparative period.

lnventories are valued as under':
Raw materials -Atweighted average cost.
Stock of Tea - at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower.
Stock of stores & spare parts - At cost (net of modvat credit) or net realizable value whichever is lower.
OtherStocks-At cost or net realisabie value whichever is lower.
Obsolete, slow-movinB and defective stocks are identified at the time of physlcal veriflcatlon of stocks and
where neces)d'y provis on rs made ,or such stoL(\.

The Company's estimates under lnd AS are consistent wlth the above rcquirement Key estlmates considered n

preparation of the financial statement that were not required 1rnder the prev ous GAAP are lirted below:

-Fair Valuation of financial instruments carried at FWPL and/ or FVOCI.
-FairValuation of Biological Assets measured at fair value less cost to sell.

"lmpairment offinancialassets based on the expected cr€dit loss model-
-Determination of the discounted vaiue for financial instruments carried at amortized cost
-Discounted value of liabil,ty for decommissioning costs.
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NORAEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED
clN No. L01132lval99qPLC04a991

NotestoFinanclalStatem€ntsasonandfo.tb.ycarended 31st[tarch,2021

Asat
31st Nl.rch 2021 lllst M.rch 2020

6

Tot.l Trade Receivables

un!.cured, considered Bood

lesr Provs on lorTar on

2,731,31010

r,r9n,3951i2

Break Up orS€ruritY D.ralls
Un5ecu.ed,.on5 dered 3ood :,191r,895 02

:,293'b95 02

Total Trade R€.eivables

7 LOANS&ADVANCES

Loans & Advances to othe.s
Uosocured, considered Cood

Total Loans &Advances

A OTHERSFINANCIALASSETS

2,731,31030

6,1 Trade rele wb es ar. no^- nterest beanns.

6.2 Notadeorotherre.eivablesareduenomdrecroaorotheroffce6olthecompanyeth..sov.rr yorioiitlvwtrhatrvotherpe
otherre.eivabeareduefioml;m lvinwhCnanvdredorsaor air,adr..rororrnrsmb.r

11s,00000

r25,00000

No tor.r rre due from dre.to6 or other ofliceu ol th. company e'ther seve.aly orJoindy w th ryotrrtrp.6oi. Noranylo!n areduelrcmInns cr
private .ompanies resped v.ly i. which any dte.tortsa padne., a d r.

0drer non-current invennems
lntern It..oivable on Loin and F'xed D!rosLc

othcr Loans and Advances

a,lFrxeddepostamounttoRs,Nil-(P.Y.7,1s,C00/)markedlennfavourofstareBaikofndaasanns:nkcufir.lto

r,926,09700

NON CUNRINT TII ASSETS [NET]
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NORBEN TEA& trXPOR1'S LIMITED
crN No. r_o113? wrr199oPLC04399r

Notes to Finan.ial sar.mentsason and for they€ar€nd.d 31st M...n,2021

10 DEFERREDTAXA5'ET5INET)

Amount in Rs. Ain;uitirnRs

Propedy, Phnt & tquipment

Sedron 438 ofrn.ome taxAct
srousht FoN:.d U.absorbed Los.r

12/105,123.03 11,113.5s030

The recogiir'on otdeleir.d tar arser on unabsorbcd deprec,alonlb o rn. prenr ofdplercn Lx

11 INVUNTORIES

(ai va ued and cerired bythe Ma.asemeft)

rn curent A.coufi /cash credit A.counr

15 OANX aAUTNCES {OTHIR THAN NOTD: 141
Fred Dep.sitwith Bank

___ 14!1r-10.!L5i!:2qql
12 BIOLO6ICAL ASSETS OTHER TIIAN BE,{RER PLANTS

FanvarueolBiotosica AseaOtherthansearerphnts(U.h:ruestedTea teave,

utrhaBe5tedte.leaveson bu5he5a5on315tMar.rr 202r w.j 24137 kus (31 03 2020 24rrokf,

r3 CURNENT INYESTMINTS

13.T INVESTMENT AT PAIR VALUE THROUCH
PROFtTOII LOSS

Invcsroenrt in euot€d Sh.res
tsansisons Tea Indurri.s
Dhunser hvestm.nLs Ltd
Dhunseri Veltures Limited
JtFornerly Dhunseri Pero.hem & Tor Ltd
Dhunso.i Tea & trdus.'es
LongvrewT€a Comprny

].OTAL CURR[NT INVEST]tlENTS

A3srearte snare Book yalua orthe euotcd rnvesrmenf

14 CASIIAND CASII EQUVAI.ENTS

3lstM:rch2021 3ln f,lr{h 2020

15,1 Altheabovefxeddepo5ir5hasbeenteirobaDrascotrteraisecurtyasannto:nrepJrnentoid.mand

16 OTflENCURRENTASSETS

Advances oth€r drao Capitrt Advances
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17 trQUITYSHARECAPI'TAL

}iORIIIN TEA & [XPORTS I-IMITED
ctN No. L01132Wl]199op1C049991

Notes to Firan.ial statenrents as on and for drx ye3. endcd 3l5 uarcl,, 202l

Asat 31siMarcl2021
No.6lShares .rln,ount

AsJt 3lsrlurr.h 2020
No ofShares

17.1 Autho.isedShareCapnal
Equiry9hare Gpit, ofRs 10/ ea.h

17.2 rssued SharE C.pital

ord n:ry shares ofR5.r0l. ea.h

openinsNumberof shares 6novo4l2020
Addrcharyeduringrheyear
closinsas.n 3v3l2021

rr,000,000 110000,000t]1

17.3 Subscrib€d and p.id-up share capjral

Ord n:ry Sh.ror oIRi.10/. each rutry paLd up

17.4 R.conciti.tionofdre nuoberofshar€sat thobeginnin! aod at rhe€nd ofthcycar

11,7s0,000 117500,00000

11,750,mq 117

11.7!0,000 117,s0000000

There ha5 bo.n no chan3e/ moveocns in numbe.ofsh.rer out$nd ngatrhe bestnij.g Jnd at rhe.nd ofnreyea,

Ic'n\/ nith(l r ri hr'l lo Eau'ry 5hJr.s:
The Company har on yone ca$ ot Ordin.ry5ha.es havnsa faco va ue of Rj 10 per jhare and cr.h hotdor olord iJry sh:re,6 c t ed ro onev.re !.rsh.re. rhe cohpa ny decra/es and pJys div dendr in nd an nupees. !he d v,deid propo5ed by rhe BoJrd ., , ,".;",; (";;;;,", . . , .""r, ,, ,,r,".,totheapprov.lofrheshar.hordersnth.^nnlatCcnecMeoungsrh..:morordnaryshrr.hodsronanri$andoii!
iou datioi. fo iows a I orhe6 n DroDo.( on to thetr sharehord ie.

ShareloldingPaltcrn wirh rcspe.t oaHolding o. Ultinrar. Holdj.lj Conp..y

The companrdoes not hayp any Ho d f,sCompany orlJkimdp Ho d ns comDanv.

DetailsofEquiryshar€lrotdershotdingororerhahS%sharesi rheConrprny

Ordina,y tha16 ot tu,10/- €ach f![y paid
MangaamP.oducaPvt.trd.

No ord narv5hares have beer r.etued ror i$ue ufderoptio0i d.-u*,,1...-,.-"r",,,,".jporrhare!/djhrenmsrd.rtlrsrircesrrlr,

The compary has f,oraloned any equitysharer a&tast.oDsderano..ther than carh nor haj rrotted air$,,e, as furypa d trD byway or lr. usshare5no.harbou8htba.kanyslDre5durjiCtlreperiodolfiveye.tsmmedneyp.e.ed'sthed r wh.lrrhssaai..sh4r !prrpred

No re.urit e5 conved bre tnto Equity/ pr€Ierence shares hav. been rsurd bythe comp:nydurtistheyear

No eir are unpa d byany oredoror Ollicer orth. companyduring th.ypar

66



NORBINTlrl & IXPORTS I,I[1I'IIT}
ctN No. f, 01132tVts1990P1C0.13991

NotestoFnDn.ialStarenremsasonandforrhdyesr.nded3rstMrrch ?021

1a OTHEREQUITY

Baranceatrh..idoltheyear

Total Rcserye & Su4rlus

NOI'I'URRENI t]AO]IITIES

Bdaiceatthe bes nitiS of the ysar

B: an.e atthe end olthe year

13,2 Retaincd Earni.gs

0aran.e atth. be8rinins of thJ year (10,r06,305.rs) 6,0r3.3s2.31
11,7s3,462_49 t16,2t5,6tqtA)

1,s{5,6s6.54 t10,206,305q51

Srarc Crpital Drv€stin.nr Subsidy
Ba an.e at theend ofrho year

Sales Tax Renrission neservc
B. rn.eat the dd otrhe year

1,4n,000.00 r,4r1,00.110

(Secured by Hypolhecalion oflhe re aled

(Secured by Hypothecalron ofthe rerared

Amount d $losod undertheh.ad orher Ftnanciat Liabi ity,'

Br€ak Up ofSecurity Dcrails

l1

From BodyCorpo.are. Rclated Patrtr
F.om BodyCorporatc - Other

314,539!0

560,174,00 476,0s1C{Prov rion lorEmp oyo. senei(r

6T

2t,000,000.00 25,0in,00q00

31d March 2021

- 1l!!!azlsi l!!!!.!l_r0!



NORAtrN Ttl! &trXPOR15 LIIITID
cIN No. 101132Wa1990Pf,C0ra991

Notes to Fimncid Statenrents isonand for(h.ycrrended 31st M.rch,2oZl

CURRENT [INANClnL LIABII,ITIES
21 SIIORTTERMBORROWINGS

Loans Repayablc on Demand
working cap tal Loan i.om Banks

Covld 19 Emergen.y Credit t ne

21,1 The.bov€amounrin.rtrd..

21,474,610.37

21.2
2t!?1t6294 ]jtt1,1:tlL

Ternr rnd.onditions of Currenr BorrowinBs
The cu.rent Borowins5from Stare Baik of tnd a are $cured primariy byway of hypothecation or st ck olrpa.roor, Cre.d leave5, nores & rp3res,
boot deba, other curre.t asets, planr & machi^e.y aad otherfixed 65ets,;qurrbe modgage orJ peceandpar.s o|afd m.aiinsapproxl26
acres land aid buldins there otr unde, serubari G.p.s tuated at oirt Jatp:rguri, ien on ss Fred Deposr R'Tl!61rlF.c varue),n rhe ncot
company and f urher seculed by pe^ona slaranree of p.omoter Dnedor.
Theagqregale amolnrolloan suaranreed byotrecloris Rs.2,30,71 620l (prevrousyear Rs 2 37 78,356/-)
Tl'e o."'-rrapo,c"oler"reo,rrrpresr per a, nJd ior Cdsh C,ed to.-,sO95oooL-.bd.eideo!ehe-r,.e

22 TflrlDEPAYABLtrS

Due5to Micro and Sma rEnterprises
ouestocrediro( otheruran Mi.ro &sma rEnteror $3

Ihe amount ot inrerei pa d by the buyer in term5
of secl,on 16 of tlre Mcro. Sma aid Medlm
Enterpr rei oeleopment Ad 2000 doiB 

"trhrhe amountor Lhe paymenr madr ro rhe supp,cr
beyond rhe appo nred da/dur na eaLh ar.ounr ns

ii e.mount of .tdreit due and !ayabe lor rhe
perod .f de ay in m3l ng p:yment but wirhour
sddns the inrerest specLfied

smaLland Medum Enterpnses oev.opme.t A.t,

The amount ol ntere* a.crued and redainins
uipaid atthe end of€ach accou iis year

Th. ahouit offu h.r ntere{ remai^ins dueand
payable.vdn in the suc.eedins yea(, uittruch
date when rhe nteren dues above are a(uaty
pad ro the 5mrlenterpri5e, for rhe purpo5e ol
d6rosJi.e or : dedud'be e.peidnure under
lp.tion 2l ot rte Mtrro, snJr dnd Medum
Enterpns.r Deve opmentAd )006

23 OTHERFINANCIALI-IAAILITIES

cureit Maturryof Non cunent Debc
rnterenAcnued on aoirow ie!

?,r7r,435 00

23.1 There are no amounts due ,or paymenr to the nveno. Edu.ation and proredioi Fuid at the yey eid
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NORBEN TEA & EXPO RTS LIM ITED
CIN No, L01132wB19r0PLcora9r1

Notes to Finin.ial statenienlsas on2nd Ioror.y.sr.nded 31st Mir.lr,2021

25 OTHERLIABILITIES

Advancer ne.eived tom cunomere

23 {INCREASE)/Df,CREASEININVENTORIESOF

26 REVENUEFRO]!I,OPERATIONS

29 EMPLOY[EBINEFITSEXPENSE

forlhete]. Fo.0reylrl
eD{led rnd.d

31sr rrtarch 2021 3t$l!.ir.t 2020

lor thcy.a. Forrheylar
snded endrd

31st M.r.h 2021 31$riir.b 2020

Sare or rrodudt

OtherOoecnna Revanu.

on Bank Depos t

Chanse in la r va uatiod ollnve5tment5

ror dre y€ai rrlle yPo
endcd ended

31stMrr.h2021

74,614,791-51 4A,141,lnts6

{a41,U4S.00) 1.53500200
Total chaoAes in rrv€trroricsor tinished

5a aries, waCeeaid Bonus

ContribuLon ro Prov dent and Other Funds

34,539,694,29 1r,919,5)C72

' Banr5OnworkrngCapir, Loans

lntere5t on Unse.ured Loan

Fortne year F.rth.yo:.
€ dcd eDded

31rtM3rch 2021 31$ Mar.h 2020

7,r01,42r 1t
Les AmouotCaptalrsed
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NORIIEN TIA & EXPORTS I-IIIIITED
CIN No. L01132wa1910Pl,C04399t

NotestoFin.nci.lStrtementsasonandfortheye.re dcd3l'|!lircl 2021
31 DEPRtrCIATION AND AMO

32 OT}IEREXPENSES

___l9!r,!92.q?

Fo.t! rerJ
edd!J

3rstMrrdr2021 31$Mrrh 2020

for rheyear For drc yoar
€nded ended

31srM3rch 2021 31nr\r:..h 2020

rorthelear Forrheyerr:
endcd eod.d

31stMarch2021 3lnMamh 2020

Stores,spe€Parts& Packng M ftai

frei8ht, sh pp ns, Der've.yCh.rg.r &

c.nmts on & B.ok.rase5

Rent, Rate5 & Ia:es
ChanBe n F3 r V:rue of nvenhenrs

o recto^' Fees & Comm sion
Les, and Profe$ ona cha.sos
Travel irB & cdnveyance Expens€s

_uli6.1!!f! i!.11L0!1!a
32.1 dudnors'Remune.ation

Remea5u.ementof the def ned beiefit prans

Les: Iaxerp.nse on the3bove

Forthoye.. ri.rrieye.r
rnded cid.d

31stMa..h 2021 31n rlaah 2020

1,146,54221

34 OTHERCOMPREHENSIVEINCOMtr

34,1 rremrlhat willnor be.ecla*tfied ro prcfitorto$

IrarO,ryelr FOrrtr.y.r
ended eided

31stMrrrh2021 3r$Mrmh2020

(20,704 00t 1rb7966001



ContinSent tiabilitles not provided for
a) Income tax llability not provided for:

Name ofthe
statute

Nature ofdues Amount (in Rs.) Period towhlch
dispute rs pendrng

24,65,OOA/ 1995 1996

8,4s,610/-

62,55,77O/-

5,ao,910/- 2014-2a15 C T{A), Kolkata

17,71,464/-

DCIT, KoLkata

2013-2014

20L1,,24t2 CIT(A), Kolkata

CIT(A), Kolkata

CIT(A), Ko kata2A11 2018

Above mentioned liabilities are Disputed lncome Tax liabillties wh ch are pending with lncome tax depaltment
hence not provided for.

b) tstlmated amount of expenditure remainlng to be executed on c.pital account (net of amount already
expended) Rs. NIL lprevious year Rs. NIL).

38. ln terms of the Accounting Standard {AS) 17, issued by the lCAl, neither a business segment nor a g€o8raphical
segment has been iderl fied ds eporldb,ese8m"nrdur:nglh"iedr.

Total value of stores & spare parts and packing material consumed: lndlgenous - 100%' Rs.24,46,8020.55
(previous year - lndigenous - 100% - Rs.25, 79,860-13).

36

31. Balance confirmation from some Sundry Creditors and Sundry Deblors are stillawaited

39

4A- lncome and Expenditure in Foreign Currency Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil)

Cla,m against the company not acknowledged as debt:
The W.B.R.E. & P.E. Cess of Rs.2780001- was not acknowledged by the company as debt and had been written
back to the accounts in the year 2013-14. The management is confident that no liability would arlse on W.8.R.E.

& P.E. Cess.

7I



47. Related PartyTransactions"Names oI related parties and description of relationship:-

Relationship Name

Key lvlanagerial Personnel Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga - Mg. Director
Nls, Mira Haldeccompany Secretary
Ms. Neha Gupta- CFO

(Appointed on 13'i Eebruary.2021)
Ms. Dipa Chatterjee 5arkar- CFO

(Religned on 13rh February,2O21)
Particulars of transactions and closi balances d the ar:

The figuaes in bracket represent corr€sponding amount ofthe previous year

42 Due to the unforeseen situatjon ofthe ongoinS COVID 19 pandemic, the company recorded no sales in the last
few days ofthe relevant FinancialYear. The company made an all out efforts to help it's worlers at the estate in
flghting the said disease by dist.ibuting sanitization kits to all its workers which increased the staff welfare
expenses.

43.

44 Previous GAAP figu.es have been reclassified / reSrouped to confirm the presentation requirements under IND

ASand the requirements laid down in Division.llof the schedule-lllofthe Companies Act,2013.

As pea our report ofeven date

Ihe company has sufficient liquidity for continuing its bus;.ess operations. The company is a,so confident about
its abilityto seNice its debt and othe r flnancia I lia bilities.

Nl. \ D -r / ur-i-'-..
For I.X,BOHANIA & CO,

Chortered Accountonts
FRNo.317136E

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mr. Director
(DlNi 00123386)

RANJAN KUMARJHALARIA

lndependent Diredor
(DIN:0s353975)

VIKASH MOHATA

Membership No.304011

t-l-\g- trdtdo"-
MIRA HALDEN

Membersh;p No.A45343
Compa ny Secreta ry

,]rleu !1to--
NIHAGUPTA

chief Fioancial officer

Nature otttan5actions Enterpaises ove r wh:ch Key

ManaBeaial Personnel have
significant influence

Key Managerial Ealance as on 31't
March,2021

Remuneration 77,42,2O3/-
(-) (76,O2,60/-) (-)

Sitting Fees 96,s00/-
('-) (58,OO0,/-) {-)

toqitA
Place: (oll(ata

Date; 26tx J une, 2021
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